
1 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
============================================================== 

P.O. Box 40   •   Irrigon, Oregon 97844 
(541) 922-4624 or (541) 676-9061 x 5503

FAX: (541) 922-3472 

 AGENDA 
Morrow County Planning Commission 

Tuesday, January 28, 2025, 6:00 pm 
Bartholomew Building, Heppner, OR 

For Electronic Participation See Meeting Information on Page 2 

Members of Commission 
Stacie Ekstrom, Chair 
John Kilkenny, Vice Chair Karl Smith Brian Thompson 
Charlene Cooley Tripp Finch  Elizabeth Peterson 
Stephen Henthorn  Andrew Cemore 

Members of Staff 
Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director       
Stephen Wrecsics, Associate Planner, GIS   Clint Shoemake, Planning Tech  
Michaela Ramirez, Administrative Assistant  Kaitlin Kennedy, Code Compliance Planner 

1. Call to Order

2. Introduction of new Planning Commissioners, Andrew Cemore and Stephen Henthorn

3. Roll Call

4. Pledge of Allegiance

5. Minutes: (Draft) December 3, 2024

6. Public Hearings to begin at 6:00 PM (COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED)

I. Public Hearing.  Variance V-N-053-24: Port of Morrow, Applicant, and Owner: The
property is described as tax lot 131 of Assessor’s Map 4N 24E 21. The property is zoned Air
Industrial Park (AI) and is located on Boardman Airport Lane, south of the Boardman Airport,
approximately 0.7 miles southwest of the intersection with Tower Road. The request is to
allow a variance to seek relief from the minimum right-of-way setback. Criteria for approval
include Morrow County Zoning Ordnance (MCZO) Section 7.200 Major Variance and Section
3.071 Air Industrial Park Zone.

II. Public Hearing.  Land Partition LP-N-529-24, Replat R-N-88-24: City of Boardman,
Applicant, and Owner:  The property is described as tax lot 134 of Assessor’s Map 4N 24.
The property is zoned Space Age Industrial (SAI) and is located west of the City of
Boardman, south of Interstate 84 and east of Tower Road. Kunze Lane bisects the middle of
the parcel, located between proposed parcels 2 and 3.  The request is to replat Parcel 1 of
Partition Plat 2014-05 into three parcels of the following approximate acreages:  12.7 acres,

pg. 5-8

pg. 10-23

1



2 

85.5 acres, and 208 acres.  Criteria for approval include Morrow County Zoning Ordinance 
Article 5 Land Partition Section 5.030 and 5.075 Replatting. 

III. Public Hearing.  Conditional Use Permit CUP-N-383-24: Martin Guzman, Applicant, and
Owner.  Conditional Use Permit to allow the storage and operation of a commercial trucking
business on a residential property. The property is described as Tax Lot 2500 of Assessor’s
Map 4N25E20A. The subject parcel is zoned Suburban Residential (SR) and is located inside
of the City of Boardman Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). Criteria for approval include Morrow
County Zoning Ordinance (MCZO) Article 3 Section 3.050, Suburban Residential, and Article
6 Section 6.050.G, Standards Governing Conditional Uses, Home Occupations.

IV. Public Hearing.  Conditional Use Permit CUP-N-384-24: Martin Guzman, Applicant, and
Owner. Conditional Use Permit to allow the storage and operation of a commercial trucking
business on a residential property. The property is described as Tax Lot 2000 of Assessor’s
Map 4N25E20A. The subject parcel is zoned Suburban Residential (SR) and is located inside
the City of Boardman Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). Criteria for approval include Morrow
County Zoning Ordinance (MCZO) Article 3 Section 3.050, Suburban Residential, and Article
6 Section 6.050.G, Standards Governing Conditional Uses, Home Occupations.

7. Other Business: January monthly update 
ADU discussion per Brian Thompson 

8. Correspondence:

9. Public Comment:

10. Adjourn

Next Meeting:  Tuesday, February 25, 2025, at 6:00 p.m.  
Location: Morrow County Government Center, Irrigon, OR 

ELECTRONIC MEETING INFORMATION 

Morrow County Planning is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. Topic: Planning Commission 
Time: January 28, 2025, 6:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6554697321?pwd=dFMxR2xlaGZkK1ZJRFVrS1Q0SmRxUT09&omn=84249
165172  

Meeting ID: 655 469 7321 
Passcode: 513093 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdmj6471tm 

pg. 25-57

pg. 59-75

pg. 77-94

pg. 96-106

2

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6554697321?pwd=dFMxR2xlaGZkK1ZJRFVrS1Q0SmRxUT09&omn=84249165172
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6554697321?pwd=dFMxR2xlaGZkK1ZJRFVrS1Q0SmRxUT09&omn=84249165172
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdmj6471tm


3 

Should you have any issues connecting to the Zoom meeting, please call 541-922-4624. Staff will 
be available at this number after hours to assist.  

This is a public meeting of the Morrow County Planning Commission and may be attended by a quorum 
of the Morrow County Board of Commissioners. Interested members of the public are invited to attend. 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours 
before the meeting to Tamra Mabbott at (541) 922-4624, or by email at tmabbott@co.morrow.or.us. 

3



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

4



Draft Minutes of the Public Meeting of the 
Morrow County Planning Commission 
Tuesday, December 3, 2024, 6:00 pm 
Morrow County Government Center 

215 NE Main Ave Irrigon, OR 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Stacie Ekstrom, Chair  Stanley Anderson 

Charlene Cooley 
Karl Smith 
ATTENDANCE via ZOOM: 
Liz Peterson Brian Thompson 
Trip Finch John Kilkenny 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director 
Clint Shoemake, Planning Technician 
Kaitlin Kennedy, Code Compliance Planner 
Michaela Ramirez, Administrative Assistant 
Staff Zoom: 
Stephen Wrecsics, GIS Analyst 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Chair Ekstrom called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM

2. ROLL CALL

3. PLEDGE

4. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER & OCTOBER MINUTES
Recommended Action: Approve
Action: Approved

Presented by: Code Compliance Planner Kaitlin Kennedy 

5a.  Conditional Use permit CUP-N-379-24: Javier Martinez Olguin, Applicant, and Owner 

Conflicts of interest: None 

Request: Conditional Use Permit to allow the storage and operation of a commercial trucking business on a 
residential property. The property is described as Tax Lot 3100 of Assessor’s Map 4N25E20A. The subject 
parcel is zoned Suburban Residential (SR) and is located inside of the City of Boardman Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB). Criteria for approval include Morrow County Zoning Ordinance (MCZO) Article 3 Section 
3.050, Suburban Residential, and Article 6 Section 6.050.G, Standards Governing Conditional Uses, Home 
Occupations.       

Motion to submit exhibit: letter from the City of Boardman, into the record for CUP-N-379-24 

5



Motion: Commissioner Finch 
2nded by: Commissioner Peterson 

Questions or Comments by Commissioners for Staff: Chair Ekstrom 

Chair Ekstrom opened the testimony part of the Public Hearing: 
Testifying Parties: 

None 

Questions or Comments by Commissioners for Applicant: None 
Questions or Comments by Staff for Applicant: None 
Opponent: None 
Neutral: None 
Proponents: None 
Motion to close the hearing: Commissioner Peterson 

Public Hearing is closed. 

Conditions of approval:  6. This permit is valid for one year with annual review and
an opportunity to renew for up to two additional years.

Recommended Action: Approve Conditional Use permit CUP-N-379-24 with changes to 
conditions 
Motion: Approve Conditional Use permit CUP-N-379-24  
Motion by: Commissioner Peterson 
Seconded by: Commissioner Finch 
Vote: All voted 
Action: Approved  

Presented by: Code Compliance Planner Kaitlin Kennedy 

5b. Conditional Use permit CUP-N-380-24: Javier Martinez Olguin, Applicant, and Owner 

Conflicts of interest: None 

Request: Conditional Use Permit to allow the storage and operation of a commercial trucking business on a 
residential property. The property is described as Tax Lot 3000 of Assessor’s Map 4N25E20A. The subject 
parcel is zoned Suburban Residential (SR) and is located inside of the City of Boardman Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB). Criteria for approval include Morrow County Zoning Ordinance (MCZO) Article 3 Section 
3.050, Suburban Residential, and Article 6 Section 6.050.G, Standards Governing Conditional Uses, Home 
Occupations.       

Motion to submit exhibit: letter from the City of Boardman, into record for CUP-N-380-24 
Motion: Commissioner Peterson 
2nded by: Commissioner Finch 

Chair Ekstrom opened the testimony part of the Public Hearing: 
Testifying Parties: 

None 

Opponent: None 

6



Neutral: None 
Proponents: None 
Motion to close the hearing: Commissioner Peterson 
Vote: All voted 
Action: Approved  

Public Hearing is closed. 

Conditions of approval: 
8. This permit is valid for one year with an annual review

and an opportunity to renew for up to two additional 
years.   

9. The applicant must attain all necessary public access
permits to the property. 

Recommended Action: Approve Conditional Use Permit CUP-N-380-24 with changes to 
conditions 
Motion: Approve Conditional Use permit CUP-N-380-24  
Motion by: Commissioner Peterson  
Seconded by: Commissioner Finch 
Vote: All voted 
Action: Approved  

Presented by: Planning Director Tamra Mabbott 

5c. Conditional Use permit CUP-N-382-24: Threemile Canyon Farms, Applicant, and Owner 

Conflicts of interest: None 

Request: Conditional Use Permit to allow a biogas treatment facility and approximately 6 miles of associated 
natural gas pipeline. The property is described as Tax Lots 100 and 112 of Assessor’s Map 3N23. The subject 
parcel is zoned Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) and is located on Marty Myers Road, three miles south of Interstate 
84. Criteria for approval include Morrow County Zoning Ordinance (MCZO) Article 3, Section 3.010(C)(22)
Commercial facilities for the purpose of generating power for public use by sale” Section 3.010(K)(1)
Commercial Power Generating Facility, Section 6.020 General Criteria, Section 6.025 Resource Zone
Standards of Approval, Section 6.030 General Conditions and MCZO 3.010(B)(25) and (D)10 Utility Facility
Necessary for Public Service.

Motion to submit exhibits: project map and supplemental documents to the application, into 
record for CUP-N-382-24 
Motion: Commissioner Peterson 
2nded by: Commissioner Finch 
Vote: All voted 
Action: Approved  

Chair Ekstrom opened the testimony part of the Public Hearing: 

Testifying Parties: 
Hayley Siltanen, Stole Rives LLP, 760 SW 9th, Portland, OR 
Greg Harris, General Manager at Threemile Canyon Farms, 75906 Threemile Rd 
Boardman, OR 
Todd Larson, Resilient Infrastructure, 485 NW 170th Dr, Beaverton, OR 

7



Merissa Moeller, Stole Rives LLP, 760 SW 9th, Portland, OR 

Questions or Comments by Staff for Applicant: Director Mabbott 
Proponents: None  
Opponent: None 
Neutral: None 
Anyone wanting to keep the record open or continue: None 
Motion to close the hearing: Commissioner Peterson 
2ned by: Commissioner Finch 
Vote: All voted 
Action: Approved  

Public Hearing is closed. 

Conditions of approval:  4. Comply with permitting with other agencies as
applicable.

Recommended Action:  Approve Conditional Use permit CUP-N-382-24 with changes to 
conditions 
Motion by: Commissioner Finch 
Seconded by: Commissioner Peterson 
Vote: All voted 
Action: Approved  

Motion: Approve Conditional Use permit CUP-N-382-24 
Motion by: Commissioner Finch 
Seconded by: Commissioner Peterson 
Vote: All voted 
Action: Approved  

Other Business:  

Correspondence:  

Public Comment: 

Adjourned: Meeting adjourned at 6:50 PM 

Next Meeting:   Tuesday, January 28, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. The next meeting will be held in Heppner, OR in 
the Bartholomew Building. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Michaela Ramirez 

8



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

9



Page 1 of 4 
V-N-053-24

Preliminary Findings of Fact  
S:\Planning\Variances\North\2024\V-N-053-24 POM Water Treatment\PC Packet\Prelim Findings V-N-053-24 

POM WTP.docx 

PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF FACT 
Use Variance Application 

V-N-053-24

REQUEST: Allow a variance to seek relief from the minimum front right-of-way setback of 30 
feet from a collector street in the Air Industrial Park Zone (AI). Specifically, this 
request is to site a water distribution building and associated concrete pad 4.26 
feet from the right-of-way. 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Jacob Cain 
Port of Morrow 
PO Box 200 
Boardman, OR 97818 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  Property is described as tax lot 131 of Assessor’s Map 4N 
24 21 

LOCATION: Tax lot 131 abuts Boardman Airport Lane on the south.  
Parcel is approximately 0.7 miles southwest of the 
intersection of Tower Road and Boardman Airport Lane. 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 

I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The subject property is approximately 950 acres in
size and zoned Air Industrial Park (AI). The Boardman Airport is located on the north
portion of this parcel, with frontage to the south on Boardman Airport Lane. See attached
map of Airport layout. The proposed location of the water distribution building is along
the south boundary line of the parcel, with frontage to the north on Boardman Airport
Lane. Boardman Airport Lane is a Port-owned roadway, 110 feet in width. The roadway
is a collector street. The developed (improved) portion of the 100-foot right-of-way is 59
feet south of the property line. The Morrow County Zoning Ordinance requires that the
minimum setback between a structure and the right-of-way of a collector street shall be
30 feet in the AI zone. The applicant desires to place a water distribution building 4.26
feet from the right-of-way. This building is a component of an airport distribution surface
water treatment facility. The remaining components were previously permitted as
accessory buildings in connection with AI use under Zoning Permits 3312-24 and 3313-
24.

The variance request for setback from the right-of-way is due to the location of the
existing wellhead. The proposed building would protect the wellhead, providing
insulation and protection from freezing conditions, creating a clean area around the
wellhead, and providing security for the potable water distribution system. The system
includes the wellhead and pump, manifolds, electrical/programming systems, and
chlorination systems. The location of the existing wellhead and minimum clear distance
for safety and long-term maintenance require that the building be in the proposed

10



Page 2 of 4 
V-N-053-24

Preliminary Findings of Fact  
S:\Planning\Variances\North\2024\V-N-053-24 POM Water Treatment\PC Packet\Prelim Findings V-N-053-24 

POM WTP.docx 

location only. The Port of Morrow Engineering Department has designed the building 
footprint to maintain as generous a setback from the Boardman Airport Lane right-of-way 
as possible. 

This request would be a variance from the setback requirement of Morrow County 
Zoning Ordinance Article 3 Use Zones Section 3.071(C) Dimensional Standards in the 
Air Industrial Park Zone. 

II. COMPLIANCE WITH MORROW COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE SECTION 7.200
MAJOR VARIANCE. Applicable Ordinance Criteria are listed below in bold type
followed by a response in regular type.

ARTICLE 7 SECTION 7.020. INTENT. Adjustments and variances are intended to
provide relief to code standards in specific situations. Both procedures are
intended to ensure that the resulting development is compatible with adjacent
properties and is consistent with the intent of the Code.

DIMENSIONAL ADJUSTMENTS. Dimensional adjustments provide relief from
specific code provisions when a code provision has the unintended effect of
preventing reasonable development in conformance with all other code
requirements.

VARIANCES. Variances provide greater flexibility to code standards than
dimensional adjustments where special circumstances exist or the physical
characteristics of a site or its surroundings prevent reasonable development in
compliance with a code standard.

ARTICLE 7 SECTION 7.200.  VARIANCES.  A Variance can serve multiple purposes
and is designed to provide relief from the literal requirements of a regulation
found within this Zoning Ordinance.  The result of approving a Variance should
result in improved planning that would benefit the applicant and the broader
community, and it may be the first step in reevaluating requirements or allowed
uses within a use zone.

MAJOR VARIANCE. The following are examples of Variances that could be
considered: siting a manufactured home that is not in compliance with current
manufactured home requirements, allowing for less frontage than required,
allowing for a smaller lot size than required, approve a variance when a
dimensional adjustment does not accomplish the needs of the property owner,
and other similar or related instances.  Use Variances amend or change the use of
a property or structure.  Area Variances tend to amend or change the area needed
to validate a lot or parcel, or reduce necessary setbacks. Financial hardship does
not qualify for a use or area Variance.

APPROVAL CRITERIA. The Planning Commission may grant a Major Variance
upon finding that all of the following criteria are met. The burden is on the
applicant to demonstrate compliance with the criteria.

11



 

Page 3 of 4 
V-N-053-24 

 Preliminary Findings of Fact  
S:\Planning\Variances\North\2024\V-N-053-24 POM Water Treatment\PC Packet\Prelim Findings V-N-053-24 

POM WTP.docx 

1. The variance relates to a specific lot or parcel of land. 
The variance will be applied to a specific parcel meeting this criterion. 

2. The Variance can be granted without substantial detriment to the public 
good. It would allow for a building or site plan that is more compatible with 
adjacent land and land uses, or it does not create a conflict with adjacent 
uses. 
The Boardman Airport is located on the north portion of this parcel, with frontage 
to the south on Boardman Airport Lane. The proposed location of the water 
distribution building is on the south portion of the parcel, with frontage to the 
north on Boardman Airport Lane.  Approval of the requested setback would not 
be of substantial detriment to the public good, particularly where the roadway is 
100 feet in width and the improved roadway surface is 59 feet to the south of the 
property line. The proposal would be compatible with adjacent land uses, which 
are industrial in nature. This criterion met. 

3. The Variance does not hinder compliance with applicable building code 
requirements or engineering design standards.   
There is nothing in the record that would indicate the proposed variance would 
hinder compliance with building code requirements or engineering design 
standards. Zoning Approval and applicable building permits are required for the 
structure; this has been listed as a condition of approval. 

4. Approval of the Variance does not create a violation of this or any other 
adopted ordinance or code standard. 
This action provides relief from the setback standard in the Air Industrial Park 
Zone, but does not create a violation of any adopted ordinance or code standard. 
The application complies with this standard.   

5. Application for a Variance should include all necessary Variances 
anticipated for the proposed development. 
The application as submitted includes all anticipated Variances for the proposed 
development.   No other variances are proposed.  This criterion is met. 

6. Application for a Variance is limited to one per year. 
No other variances are anticipated for the subject parcel based on the proposal.  
The applicant intends to construct the wellhead structure within one year.  
Therefore this criterion is met.       

 
III. LEGAL NOTICE PUBLISHED:  January 8, 2025 
      East Oregonian 
 
      January 8, 2025 
      Heppner Gazette-Times 
 
IV. AGENCIES NOTIFIED:  Eric Imes, Morrow County Public Works; Mike Gorman, Morrow 

County Assessor; Dawn Hert, Oregon Department of Land Conservation and 
Development; Michael Hughes, Boardman Rural Fire Protection District; Glenn McIntire, 
Building Official; Brandon Pike, Oregon Department of Aviation 

 
V. PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFIED: January 8, 2025 
 

12



 

Page 4 of 4 
V-N-053-24 

 Preliminary Findings of Fact  
S:\Planning\Variances\North\2024\V-N-053-24 POM Water Treatment\PC Packet\Prelim Findings V-N-053-24 

POM WTP.docx 

VI. AGENCY COMMENTS:  
Brandon Pike, Aviation Planner, Oregon Department of Aviation (ODAV), emailed 
comments regarding aeronautical evaluation and development requirements of the 
ODAV and FAA. That email is included in the packet mailed to the Planning 
Commission. Compliance with ODAV and FAA requirements has been added as a 
Condition of Approval. 

 
VII. HEARING DATE:   January 28, 2025 

Bartholomew Building 
Heppner, Oregon 

 
VIII. DECISION OF PLANNING COMMISSION:  Planning Commission may approve the 

application subject to the following CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
     

1. Obtain the required Zoning Approvals and applicable Building Permits for the 
structure. 

2. Comply with all evaluation and development requirements of the Oregon 
Department of Aviation and Federal Aviation Administration. 

 
 
 
  

Stacie Ekstrom, Chair Date 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Vicinity Map 
Plot Plan 
Variance Application 
Email from ODAV 

 
 

13



14



CO
RR

EC
TE

D
O

W
N

ER
 1

O
W

N
ER

 2
M

AI
L 

AD
DR

ES
S

CI
TY

ST
AT

E
ZI

PC
O

DE
4N

24
E 

11
5

CO
LU

M
BI

A 
BA

SI
N

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 L
LC

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

PO
 B

O
X 

11
91

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

HE
RM

IS
TO

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

83
8

4N
24

E 
13

5
CS

S 
PO

TA
TO

 F
AR

M
S,

 L
LC

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
59

11
 2

N
D 

AV
E 

W
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

KE
AR

N
EY

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
N

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

68
84

7
4N

24
E2

3 
50

1
DO

HE
RT

Y,
 B

RY
CE

 E
T 

AL
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

67
99

0 
KU

N
ZE

 L
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
BO

AR
DM

AN
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E2
3 

50
0

DO
HE

RT
Y,

 B
RY

CE
 E

T 
AL

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
67

99
0 

KU
N

ZE
 L

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

24
E2

3 
40

0
CO

RP
U

S,
 A

LB
ER

T 
M

 &
 S

HE
IL

A 
M

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
68

14
0 

KU
N

ZE
 L

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

24
E2

3 
40

2
DO

HE
RT

Y,
 JA

M
ES

 E
 &

 D
O

HE
RT

Y,
 K

EL
LY

 L
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
68

81
2 

W
 W

IL
SO

N
 L

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
BO

AR
DM

AN
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E2
3 

40
1

DO
HE

RT
Y,

 JA
M

ES
 E

 &
 D

O
HE

RT
Y,

 K
EL

LY
 L

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

68
81

2 
W

 W
IL

SO
N

 L
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

24
E 

12
1

TH
RE

EM
IL

E 
CA

N
YO

N
 F

AR
M

S,
 L

LC
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
90

6 
TH

RE
EM

IL
E 

RD
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
BO

AR
DM

AN
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E 
11

7
TH

RE
EM

IL
E 

CA
N

YO
N

 F
AR

M
S,

 L
LC

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

90
6 

TH
RE

EM
IL

E 
RD

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

24
E 

11
4

U
M

AT
IL

LA
 E

LE
CT

RI
C 

CO
-O

P 
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
PO

 B
O

X 
11

48
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
HE

RM
IS

TO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
83

8
4N

24
E 

13
0

PO
RT

 O
F 

M
O

RR
O

W
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

PO
 B

O
X 

20
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

24
E 

11
0

PO
RT

 O
F 

M
O

RR
O

W
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

PO
 B

O
X 

20
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

24
E 

13
4

CI
TY

 O
F 

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

PO
 B

O
X 

22
9 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

24
E2

3 
90

1
FR

AN
K 

TI
EG

S,
 L

LC
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
PO

 B
O

X 
31

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
PA

SC
O

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

W
A 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
99

30
2

4N
24

E 
13

1
AN

DE
RS

O
N

, N
AN

CY
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

PO
 B

O
X 

34
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

CH
EH

AL
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
W

A 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

98
53

2
4N

24
E 

13
2

FA
RM

LA
N

D 
RE

SE
RV

E,
 IN

C 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
PO

 B
O

X 
51

11
96

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
SA

LT
 L

AK
E 

CI
TY

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
U

T 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

84
15

1
4N

24
E 

13
3

LO
VE

'S
 T

RA
VE

L 
ST

O
PS

 &
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y 
ST

O
RE

S 
IN

C
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
PO

 B
O

X 
52

56
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

AK
 B

RO
O

K 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
IL

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
60

52
2

4N
24

E1
4 

20
4

KR
EB

S 
LI

VE
ST

O
CK

, L
LC

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
PO

 B
O

X 
54

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
EN

TE
RP

RI
SE

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

82
8

4N
24

E 
11

3
TR

U
E 

O
RG

AN
IC

 P
RO

DU
CT

S,
 L

LC
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

PO
 B

O
X 

71
92

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

SP
RE

CK
LE

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
CA

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

96
2

4N
24

E 
13

8
AM

AZ
O

N
 D

AT
A 

SE
RV

IC
ES

, I
N

C
PO

 B
O

X 
80

41
6

SE
AT

TL
E

W
A 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
98

10
8

4N
24

E 
13

7
AM

AZ
O

N
 D

AT
A 

SE
RV

IC
ES

, I
N

C
PO

 B
O

X 
80

41
6

SE
AT

TL
E

W
A 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
98

10
8

4N
24

E 
13

6
AM

AZ
O

N
 D

AT
A 

SE
RV

IC
ES

, I
N

C
PO

 B
O

X 
80

41
6

SE
AT

TL
E

W
A 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
98

10
8

V-
N

-0
53

-2
4|

Po
rt

 o
f M

or
ro

w
|A

I0
.5

m
i.

no
tic

e.
4N

24
E2

1 
TL

13
1.

S:
\P

la
nn

in
g\

Va
ria

nc
e\

N
or

th
\2

02
4

15



©
 2

02
4 

M
ic

ro
so

ft 
Co

rp
or

at
io

n 
©

 2
02

4 
M

ax
ar

 ©
CN

ES
 (2

02
4)

 D
ist

rib
ut

io
n 

Ai
rb

us
 D

S 

S
IT

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
E

E
 S

H
E

E
T

 G
1

.1
 F

O
R

E
N

L
A

R
G

E
D

 V
IE

W

4
N

2
4

E
1

3
1

9
4

9
.9

8
A

C

TOWER ROAD

A
IR

P
O

R
T 

R
O

A
D

SH
EE

T.
 N

O
.

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SH
EE

T 
SI

ZE
: D

N
O

.
DA

TE
RE

VI
SI

O
N

 D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
BY

:

DA
TE

:

P-
00

51
-2

1

O
W

N
ER

:  
   

 P
O

RT
 O

F 
M

O
RR

O
W

EN
GI

N
EE

R:
  J

AC
O

B 
K.

 C
AI

N
, P

E

CO
N

TA
CT

:  
 (5

41
) 4

81
 -7

67
8

LO
CA

TI
O

N
: A

irp
or

t R
oa

d
   

   
BO

AR
DM

AN
, O

R 
97

81
8

 S
TA

M
P:

12
-0

6-
20

24

 1
11

-2
1-

20
24

Pl
an

s f
or

 P
er

m
itt

in
g

TC

Exp: 12/31/2025

 1
12

-0
7-

20
24

Ad
ju

st
 P

la
ns

 F
or

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

 &
 E

qp
m

nt
. O

nl
y

W
IR

A
IR

P
O

R
T

 D
IS

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

 W
A

T
E

R
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
PO

R
T 

O
F 

M
O

R
R

O
W

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

: 
O

R
EG

O
N

, M
O

R
R

O
W

, B
O

A
R

D
M

A
N

, P
O

R
T 

O
F 

M
O

R
R

O
W

O
W

N
ER

: 
PO

R
T 

O
F 

M
O

R
R

O
W

EN
G

IN
EE

R
: 

JA
C

O
B

 K
. C

A
IN

 P
E,

  P
or

t E
ng

in
ee

r
C

O
N

TA
C

T:
(5

41
) 4

81
 - 

76
78

P
A

G
E

 N
O

.:
S

H
E

E
T

 N
O

.:
D

R
A

W
IN

G
 T

IT
L

E
:

1
)

 
G

1
.0

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

2
)

 
G

1
.1

 
O

V
E

R
A

L
L

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

ST
A

TE
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 M
A

P

 C
O

U
N

TY
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 M
A

P

O
R

EG
O

N
 S

TA
TE

M
O

R
R

O
W

 C
O

U
N

TY

 V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

G
1

.0

P
O

R
T

 O
F

 M
O

R
R

O
W

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

B
o

a
rd

m
a

n

SU
RF

AC
E 

W
AT

ER
 T

RE
AT

M
EN

T 
PL

AN
T

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
 C

O
VE

R 
PA

GE

16



A
IR

P
O

R
T 

R
O

A
D

 A
 C

L

A
IR

P
O

R
T 

R
O

A
D

 A
 C

L

2
8

6
'

2
3

2
3

7
5

.0
0

'

7
5

.0
0

'

Ø
1

2
6

.7
7

6
'

5
2

5
'

5
4

2
'

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
S

O
L

ID
S

 H
A

N
D

L
IN

G
B

A
S

IN
 3

0
,0

0
0

 S
F

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
M

E
M

B
R

A
N

E
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 1

6
,0

0
0

 S
F

1
2

8
'

2
0

'
3

0
.7

2
'

4
1

2
'

2
5

1
0

'

Ø
3

1
.9

7
'

P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
E

D
2

 M
G

 R
E

S
E

R
V

IO
R

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
1

2
,6

5
0

 S
F

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 W
E

L
L

4
N

2
4

E
1

3
1

9
4

9
.9

8
A

C

4
N

2
4

E
1

3
1

9
4

9
.9

8
A

C

4
N

2
4

E
1

3
1

9
4

9
.9

8
A

C

N
E

W
 6

' C
H

A
IN

 L
IN

K
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 F
E

N
C

E

P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
E

D
G

E
N

E
R

A
T

O
R

 / 
T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

P
A

D
S

 &
 S

ID
E

W
A

L
K

S
 1

,4
1

5
 S

F

1
5

0

1
3

5

1
9

9
'

5
7

6
'

3
2

0
5

' 3
5

6
4

'

3
1

4
3

'

2
6

8
3

'

3

4

5

6

7

   
  8    
  9

8

1
1

1

2

3
1

1
3

'

P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
E

D
 W

E
L

L
 / 

D
IS

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
2

,1
7

0
 S

F

SH
EE

T.
 N

O
.

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SH
EE

T 
SI

ZE
: D

N
O

.
DA

TE
RE

VI
SI

O
N

 D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
BY

:

DA
TE

:

P-
00

51
-2

1

O
W

N
ER

:  
   

 P
O

RT
 O

F 
M

O
RR

O
W

EN
GI

N
EE

R:
  J

AC
O

B 
K.

 C
AI

N
, P

E

CO
N

TA
CT

:  
 (5

41
) 4

81
 -7

67
8

LO
CA

TI
O

N
: A

irp
or

t R
oa

d
   

   
BO

AR
DM

AN
, O

R 
97

81
8

 S
TA

M
P:

12
-0

6-
20

24

 1
11

-2
1-

20
24

Pl
an

s f
or

 P
er

m
itt

in
g

TC

Exp: 12/31/2025

 1
12

-0
7-

20
24

Ad
ju

st
 P

la
ns

 F
or

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

 &
 E

qp
m

nt
. O

nl
y

W
IR

G
1

.1
SU

RF
AC

E 
W

AT
ER

 T
RE

AT
M

EN
T 

PL
AN

T
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

17

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
2+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
3+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
5+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
6+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

cshoemake
Polygonal Line

cshoemake
Polygonal Line



18



19



20



21



22



23



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

24



Page 1 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF FACT 
LAND PARTITION REQUEST 

LP-N-529-24 
R-N-88-24

REQUEST: To partition an approximately 306.7-acre parcel into three parcels, a replat of Parcel One of 
Partition Plat 2014-05.    

APPLICANT/OWNER City of Boardman 
Brandon Hammond, City Manager 
200 City Center Circle 
PO Box 229 
Boardman, Oregon 97818 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: Tax Lot 134 of Assessor’s Map 4N 24E also known as parcel one 
of Partition Plat 2014-05. 

PROPERTY LOCATION: Located on the east side of Tower Road at the intersection of 
Kunze Lane, southeast of the I-84 interchange. 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 

I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The subject parcel is zoned Space Age Industrial (SAI) and is located outside the Boardman
Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). The applicant proposes to partition two parcels from the parent
parcel, tax lot 134, also known as parcel one of Partition Plat 2014-05.  Technically, the
application is to replat parcel One of PP 2014-05.  Proposed parcel 1 is approximately 12.7 acres;
proposed parcel 2 is approximately 85.5 acres; proposed parcel 3 is approximately 208.5 acres.
See the attached “detail map.”  All three proposed parcels are undeveloped.  Future
development on the parcels was not identified as part of this application, however, the
applicant is considering the possibility of a rezone and future development of an RV Park on
proposed Parcel 2 and the development of a power substation on parcel 1.

II. APPROVAL CRITERIA: 
Morrow County Subdivision Ordinance Article 5- Land Partitions will apply. Criteria are listed
below in bold type, followed by a response in standard type.

MORROW COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE ARTICLE 5 LAND PARTITIONS SECTION 5.030.
REQUIREMENTS FOR APPROVAL. No application for partitioning shall be approved unless the
following requirements are met:
1. Proposal is in compliance with the County and affected City Comprehensive Plan and

applicable Zoning.

Finding:   The applicant has submitted a preliminary partition plat.  The proposed
partition meets the minimum parcel size requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and the

25



Page 2 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

Space Age Industrial Zone (SAI) and the Comprehensive Plan.  The applicant is required 
to submit a final partition plat in compliance with this Article and ORS Chapter 92. This is 
recommended and listed as a Condition of Approval. 

2. Each parcel is suited for the use intended or offered; including, but not limited to,
sewage disposal approval and guaranteed access.  Proof of access must show that
each parcel has an easement sufficient for continued ingress and egress to a public,
county or state highway or has a deeded access way.

Finding: The applicant has proposed three new parcels in the Space Age Industrial Zone
(SAI zone), which has no minimum dimension requirements. The proposed parcels are
adequate in size to accommodate the uses allowed in the SAI zone.

Sewage Disposal
Applicant did not identify specific development but indicated that Umatilla Electric
Cooperative may purchase proposed parcel 1 for a future electric substation site and, a
rezone application may be submitted for parcels 2 and 3 in the future.  Given the large
size of the parcels, an onsite septic disposal system would not be precluded.  It is not
recommended that the applicant be required to obtain site suitability for the parcels.

Access
The original application did not identify any new legal access.  The application noted
that access “locations to be determined at the time of development.”   Since the original
application, county staff and the applicant have discussed several options for access.

Most recently, the applicant proposed using the existing 40-foot easement for proposed
parcel 1 and deferring the identification of specific access locations for proposed parcels
2 and 3 to the time of development, recognizing both have direct frontage to Tower
Road and Kunze Lane.

Morrow County and the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) are developing
an Interchange Area Management Plan (IAMP) for the Tower Road and Interstate 84
intersection.  The purpose of the study is to preserve the safety and functionality of the
interchange. The study area extends from I-84 on the north to Boardman Airport Lane
on the south.  As part of the IAMP, new access management standards will be proposed.
The final IAMP will be processed as a legislative amendment to the county
Transportation System Plan (TSP).  Until that plan is adopted, land use actions and
access and road standards are those identified in the Subdivision Ordinance, the Zoning
Ordinance, and the TSP.  If specific access locations are not required as part of this
application, future development will be subject to the access spacing and management
standards in place at the time of application, including new standards anticipated with
adoption of the IAMP.

Access for proposed parcel 1 The preliminary partition plat map shows the existing
easement from Kunze Lane on the south, extending to the north along the eastern
boundary of proposed parcel 2 and ending at the west terminus of parcel 1.  See

26



Page 3 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

attached preliminary plat.  That existing easement is 40 feet in width.  Minimum 
roadway easement is 60 feet according to Subdivision Ordinance Article 8 (W) below. 

The existing 40-foot easement will serve two (2) parcels as part of the subject land 
partition.  However, that easement could also serve parcel 2, a 85.51-acre parcel.  Parcel 
2 has the potential to be further partitioned and the access for those future parcels 
would be the easement or Kunze Lane.  Therefore, it is recommended as a condition of 
approval that the applicant dedicate 20 feet to the existing easement which would 
result in a 60-foot easement.  That 60-foot easement would meet the Easement and 
Legal Access standard shown above.  

Note:  the existing easement is approximately coterminous with the “old Kunze Road” 
which was re-aligned to its current location as shown on the attached maps.  The 
current location of the Kunze Lane right of way (with improvements) is the proposed 
boundary between proposed parcel 2 and parcel 3.  Based on staff research, “old Kunze 
Road” has never formally been vacated.  A portion of the abandoned Kunze Lane is 
located on land owned by Loves Truck Stop.  The other portion of the “old Kunze Road” 
is located on land owned by the City of Boardman, which is also the applicant for this 
land partition.   

Access for proposed parcels 2 and 3 As noted above, the applicant proposes that the 
county make a finding that Kunze Lane and Tower Road are viable options for future 
access given the length of the roadways and the fact that a specific development has 
not been identified.   Applicant further requests that the county not impose a condition 
of approval requiring that they identify specific access points or obtain access permits.   

Although a specific development is not proposed as part of this application and future 
traffic generation is unknown, Article 5 above requires the county find that the parcels 
have a guaranteed access.  Neither parcel 2 or 3 currently have a permitted access 
permit from County Public Works.  There are many existing driveways and access points 
along Tower Road (see attached Tower Road Access Map).   Tower Road is classified as a 
rural arterial I based on traffic volumes.  See Roadway Standards below.  

27



Page 4 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

The minimum spacing standard on a rural arterial is 300 feet for access and 600 feet for 
public or private access roads.  See TSP Table 6-3 below.   

In order to find that access locations for the new parcels will meet the guaranteed 
access requirement in Article 5.030 and in order to find that the new access road or 
driveway complies with the spacing standards in Table 6-3, and, given the high volume 
of traffic on Tower Road and the large number of existing access and driveways on 
Tower Road, the following two conditions are proposed below and also included in the 
Conditions of Approval. 

A) Access to proposed parcel 1 will be the existing access/roadway easement
located along the eastern boundary of proposed parcel 2 beginning on the
north side of Kunze Lane and extending north where it intersects with tax

28



Page 5 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

lot 122 and then continuing to the western boundary of proposed parcel 1.   
As part of this access, the applicant will dedicate an additional 20 feet to the 
existing 40-foot access/roadway easement, conforming to the 60-foot 
minimum roadway standard.  Additionally, a turnaround at the western 
terminus will be dedicated on the final plat to allow for emergency vehicle 
access and turnaround.  Specific turnaround design standards will comply 
with the recommendations of the Boardman Fire District. 

B) Obtain access to proposed parcel 2 and proposed parcel 3 to Kunze Lane.
An access permit from County Public Works will be required before signing
final plat.

3. All required public service and facilities are available and adequate.

Finding: Electricity and telephone services are available in the area; the Applicant will be
responsible for coordinating with local providers for future service. No other public services or
facilities are available.

4. Proposal will not have any identifiable adverse impacts on adjoining or area land uses, public
services and facilities, and natural resource-carrying capacities.

Finding: The proposed parcels are zoned Space Age Industrial (SAI). Future use is yet to be
determined; therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated to be considered for this land
partition application.   Although no specific future use is identified, it is presumed that the new
development will include a new on-site well and septic system.

This property is in an area designated for water quality concerns by the Oregon Department of
Environmental Quality. Specifically, the subject property is in the Lower Umatilla Basin
Groundwater Management Area (LUBGWMA). The Department of Environmental Quality
designated the LUBGWMA in 1990 due to elevated nitrate concentrations in groundwater. It is
recommended that wells used for drinking water be tested at least bi-annually to determine
nitrate concentrations and to notify persons drinking the water about public health impacts.

Each of the proposed parcels are large and would appear to have adequate area for an on-site
well and septic system.  Specific permitting for on-site septic can be deferred to the
development review process when more precise septic system demands can be evaluated.

Notice will be provided to the owners of property adjacent to the exterior boundaries of the
existing parcel, as well as to the Oregon DEQ, who may provide additional comment.

5. An approved water rights diversion plan as applicable.

Finding: Preliminary Findings of Fact will be referred to the Regional Watermaster and the West
Extension Irrigation District (WEID) for review and comment. As a condition of approval, it is
recommended that the applicant comply with any recommendations of the Watermaster
relative to water rights allocation amongst the three parcels.

29



Page 6 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

Based on the most recent GIS shapefile from the West Extension Irrigation District (WEID) a very 
small area of proposed parcel 3 is within the WEID boundaries.   The terminus of the WEID canal 
ends at the abutting property to the east.   WEID provided comments noting that there is a 
federal ditch on the property and an undefined federal Bureau of Reclamation easement.  It is 
recommended that the applicant comply with recommendations of the WEID.  

6. Flag lots will not be permitted when the results would be to increase the number of properties
requiring direct and individual access from a State Highway or other arterial. Flag lots may be
permitted to achieve planning objectives under the following conditions:
a. When flag lot driveways are separated by at least twice the minimum frontage

distance.
b. The driveway must meet driveway standards described in Article 8, Section 8.020.V.
c. The lot meets the minimum lot area of the zoning district, without including the

driveway.
d. Only one flag lot shall be permitted per private right-of-way or access easement.

Finding: This provision does not apply as no flag lots are proposed. 

7. The depth of any lot will not be restricted as long as a buildable parcel is proposed.

Finding: The applicant has proposed three new parcels in the Space Age Industrial Zone (SAI
zone), which has no minimum dimension (parcel size) requirements. The proposed parcels are
adequate in size to accommodate the allowed uses in the SAI zone.

8. An application for partitioning will be denied when it can be shown that the partitioning is
part of a plan or scheme to create more than three (3) parcels without going through
subdivision or is part of a development pattern creating more than three (3) parcels without
subdividing. If the Planning Director determines that the proposed partition constitutes series
partitioning, or if series partitioning has occurred in the past, then the Planning Director may
require the application be subject to the requirements for a subdivision or Planned Unit
Development.

Finding:   The most recent land partition was in 2014.  See Partition Plat 2014-5.  The Loves
Truck Stop parcel was partitioned from the larger parcel in 2012.  See Partition Plat 2012-13.
The applicant is not proposing further land partitioning at this time; however, approval of this
partition would not preclude further partitioning.  The county could require this partition to
meet subdivision standards, however, that is not recommended at this time.  One of the primary
differences between subdivision standards and partitioning standards is the requirement to
construct and develop roadways. See Article 9 Improvements and Article 9 Section 9.010
Improvement Procedures for Subdivisions.  See also TSP Appendix A Roadway Standards
(attached).

30



Page 7 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

The applicant has requested that the county not require improvements at this time.   As a 
condition of approval, it is recommended that further partitioning comply with the subdivision 
review process and standards in Article 9.  Additionally, a condition of approval is recommended 
to require the access easement to parcel 1 be constructed to a minimum Rural Access II 
standard prior to development on Parcel 1.  This is noted below as a subsequent condition of 
approval.   If parcel 2 is further partitioned the roadway standard for the 60-foot easement will 
change and improvements may need to be changed to a higher volume standard.   

9. In addition to the requirements set forth above, the following factors may be considered for
approval or disapproval of an application for land partitioning if a geographical or other factor
identified by other, appropriate professionals or plans such as the requirements of the
Comprehensive Plan, FEMA requirements, Byways rules, etc., requires it:

a. Placement and availability of utilities.
b. Safety from fire, flood and other natural hazards.
c. The same improvements may be required for a partitioning as required of a

subdivision, if required it will be installed by the applicant.
d. Possible effects on natural, scenic and historical resources.
e. Need for onsite or offsite improvements.
f. Need for additional setback, screening, landscaping and other requirements relative

to the protection of adjoining and area land uses.  If the proposed partition is located
within an Urban Growth Boundary, the affected city must be given notice according to
the respective Joint Management agreement.

g. In the approval of a land partition, the need for street and other improvements will be
considered and may be required as a Condition of Approval at a different standard
than for a subdivision.

Finding: The proposed parcels are not within the Flood Overlay Zone and are within the
Boardman Rural Fire Protection District.   Part of the property is located within the
Airport Safety and Compatibility (ASC) Zone which is intended to protect and support
the continued operation of the Boardman public use airport by establishing
compatibility and safety standards and to reduce potential safety hazards for persons
living, working or recreating near that airport.   The proposed parcel configuration does
not appear to conflict with airport operation safety and functionality.  Compliance with
ASC Zone will be required as part of future development approval.

MORROW COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE ARTICLE 5 LAND PARTITIONS SECTION 5.075. 
REPLATTING.   A reconfiguration of a recorded subdivision or partition plat or a change in the 
number of lots in the subdivision or partition may be approved by the Planning Commission or 
as defined in ORS 92.180.  Replats will act to vacate the platted lots or parcels and easements 
within the replat area with the following conditions: 

1. A replat will apply only to a recorded plat.

31



 

Page 8 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

Finding:  A replat is required as the applicant is proposing to reconfigure Parcel 1 of 
Partition Plat 2014-5.  

  
2. Notice shall be provided when the replat is replatting all of an undeveloped subdivision as 

defined in ORS 92.225. 
Finding:  This provision does not apply as this is not a replat of an undeveloped 
subdivision. Rather, this is a replat of a Partition Plat.  However, notice was provided under 
the requirements of the Morrow County Subdivision Ordinance. 

  
3. Notice shall be provided to the owners of property adjacent to the exterior boundaries of 

the tentative subdivision replat. 
Finding:  Notice has been provided to adjoining property owners and affected agencies. 

  
4. When a utility easement is proposed to be realigned, reduced in width or omitted by a 

replat, all affected utility companies or public agencies shall be notified, consistent with a 
governing body’s notice to owners of property contiguous to the proposed plat. Any utility 
company that desires to maintain an easement subject to vacation under this section 
must notify the Planning Department in writing within 14 days of the mailing or other 
service of the notice. 
Finding:  No changes to utility easements are proposed.  This replat is at the request of 
the landowner. 

  
5. A replat will not serve to vacate any public street or road. 

 
Finding: No streets or roads are proposed to be vacated. 

  
6. A replat will comply with all subdivision provisions of this Article and all applicable 

Ordinances.  
Finding:  This requirement is met as the parcels were subject to the provisions of this 
Article with both the previous partition and this proposal. The applicant will need to submit 
both a preliminary and final partition plat to comply with this Article and ORS Chapter 92. 
This is recommended and listed as a Condition of Approval. 

 
 

IV. AGENCIES NOTIFIED: Greg Silbernagel, Watermaster; Mike Gorman, Morrow County Assessor; Steve 
Freeland, Emergency Management; Eric Imes and Rory Rowlette, Morrow County Public Works; 
Matt Kenny, Morrow County Surveyor; Mike Hughes, Boardman RFPD; Mike Hiatt, Oregon 
Department of Environmental Quality; Oregon DEQ Eastern Region Office; Teresa Penninger, Oregon 
Department of Transportation; Chris Kowitz, Oregon Water Resources Department; Greg 
Silbernagel, Oregon Water Resources Department; Bev Bridgewater, West Extension Irrigation 
District; Brian Hammond, City of Boardman; Brian Snyder, Umatilla County Undersheriff; Lisa 

32



Page 9 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

Mittelsdorf and Jacob Cain, Port of Morrow, Sean Kimbrel, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, Hermiston 
Field Office. 

V. PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFIED: January 8, 2025 

VI. PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION: This application may be approved subject to the following
Precedent Conditions of Approval. These conditions must be completed before the Planning
Director may sign the final partition plat and before the land may be deeded to a third party.

1. Submit a final partition plat in compliance with Article 5 of the Morrow County Subdivision
Ordinance and ORS Chapter 92.

2. Show existing and proposed easements on the Final Partition Plat, including the dedication of 20
feet to the existing public 40 feet access/roadway easement from Kunze Road on the south,
northerly along the eastern boundary of proposed parcel #2, and then westerly to the west
boundary of proposed parcel #1.  The final plat shall also include an emergency access
turnaround at the west terminus of the 60-foot access/roadway easement to parcel #1.

3. Improve the roadway easement to comply with Section 6 of the Morrow County Transportation
System Plan.   Road improvement may be deferred as a subsequent condition of approval which
would require the road be built prior to development.

4. Obtain an Access Permit from Morrow County Public Works, for new driveway or roadway to
Kunze Road for proposed parcels #2 and #3.

5. Obtain preliminary septic suitability from Umatilla County Environmental Health for proposed
parcel #1.  Note:  this may be deferred if future development is identified, and septic will not be
required for the development on that parcel.

6. File appropriate documents to confirm water rights allocation, consistent with
recommendations of the watermaster.

7. Comply with recommendations of the West Extension Irrigation District.

8. Comply with recommendations of the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation regarding the federal right of
way on the property.

9. Comply with recommendations of the Oregon Department of Aviation, if any are recommended
for this partition application.

33



Page 10 of 10 
LP-N-529-24 and R-N-88-24 
Preliminary Findings of Fact 

Subsequent Conditions of Approval.  These conditions apply after the Final Partition and Replat have 
been approved and prior to development.  

1. Construct a roadway on the public 60-foot easement to parcel 1 before development. Minimum
roadway standard shall be Rural Access 1 (illustrated in the Morrow County TSP Appendix A
Roadway Standards).  The public roadway will not be the responsibility of the county to maintain.
As part of the future development review process, the county will require a road maintenance
agreement.

2. Further partitioning of parcels may be subject to subdivision standards and processes.

Stacie Ekstrom, Chair  
Morrow County Planning Commission 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Vicinity Map 
Detail Map  
Preliminary Plat Map 
Tower Road Access Map 
MCSO Article 9 
Roadway Standards 
Application forms (2) 
Letters from agencies and others 

34



35



CO
RR

EC
TE

D
O

W
N

ER
 1

O
W

N
ER

 2
M

AI
L 

AD
DR

ES
S

CI
TY

ST
AT

E
ZI

PC
O

DE
4N

24
E 

56
00

U
SA

 (B
O

M
BI

N
G

 R
AN

G
E)

0
4N

24
E1

4 
20

0
PH

IL
LI

PS
, T

IM
22

60
 V

O
LP

P 
ST

W
ES

T 
LI

N
N

   
   

   
 

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

06
8

4N
24

E 
13

5
CS

S 
PO

TA
TO

 F
AR

M
S,

 L
LC

59
11

 2
N

D  
AV

E 
W

KE
AR

N
EY

N
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
68

84
7

4N
24

E2
3 

50
1

DO
HE

RT
Y,

 B
RY

CE
 E

T 
AL

67
99

0 
KU

N
ZE

 L
N

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E2
3 

50
0

DO
HE

RT
Y,

 B
RY

CE
 E

T 
AL

67
99

0 
KU

N
ZE

 L
N

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E2
3 

40
2

DO
HE

RT
Y,

 JA
M

ES
 E

 &
 D

O
HE

RT
Y,

 K
EL

LY
 L

   
  

68
81

2 
W

 W
IL

SO
N

 L
N

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E2
3 

40
1

DO
HE

RT
Y,

 JA
M

ES
 E

 &
 D

O
HE

RT
Y,

 K
EL

LY
 L

   
  

68
81

2 
W

 W
IL

SO
N

 L
N

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E 
12

1
TH

RE
EM

IL
E 

CA
N

YO
N

 F
AR

M
S,

 L
LC

   
   

   
   

 
75

90
6 

TH
RE

EM
IL

E 
RD

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E 
11

7
TH

RE
EM

IL
E 

CA
N

YO
N

 F
AR

M
S,

 L
LC

   
   

   
   

 
75

90
6 

TH
RE

EM
IL

E 
RD

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E 
12

2
U

M
AT

IL
LA

 E
LE

CT
RI

C 
CO

-O
P

PO
 B

O
X 

11
48

HE
RM

IS
TO

N
   

   
   

   
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
83

8
4N

24
E 

12
3

PO
RT

 O
F 

M
O

RR
O

W
PO

 B
O

X 
20

0
BO

AR
DM

AN
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

24
E 

11
0

PO
RT

 O
F 

M
O

RR
O

W
PO

 B
O

X 
20

0
BO

AR
DM

AN
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

24
E 

13
4

CI
TY

 O
F 

BO
AR

DM
AN

PO
 B

O
X 

22
9

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
24

E2
3 

90
1

FR
AN

K 
TI

EG
S,

 L
LC

PO
 B

O
X 

31
10

PA
SC

O
W

A 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

99
30

2
4N

24
E 

13
1

AN
DE

RS
O

N
, N

AN
CY

PO
 B

O
X 

34
CH

EH
AL

IS
W

A 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

98
53

2
4N

24
E 

13
2

FA
RM

LA
N

D 
RE

SE
RV

E,
 IN

C
PO

 B
O

X 
51

11
96

SA
LT

 L
AK

E 
CI

TY
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

U
T 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
84

15
1

4N
24

E 
13

3
LO

VE
'S

 T
RA

VE
L 

ST
O

PS
 &

 C
O

U
N

TR
Y 

ST
O

RE
S 

IN
C

PO
 B

O
X 

52
56

O
AK

 B
RO

O
K

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
52

2
4N

24
E1

4 
20

4
KR

EB
S 

LI
VE

ST
O

CK
, L

LC
PO

 B
O

X 
54

EN
TE

RP
RI

SE
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
82

8
4N

24
E 

11
3

TR
U

E 
O

RG
AN

IC
 P

RO
DU

CT
S,

 L
LC

   
   

   
   

  
PO

 B
O

X 
71

92
SP

RE
CK

LE
S

CA
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

93
96

2
4N

24
E 

13
6

AM
AZ

O
N

 D
AT

A 
SE

RV
IC

ES
, I

N
C

PO
 B

O
X 

80
41

6
SE

AT
TL

E
W

A
98

10
8

LP
-N

-5
29

-2
4|

Ci
ty

 o
f B

oa
rd

m
an

|S
AI

 50
0f

t.
no

tic
e.

4N
24

E 
TL

13
4.

S:
\P

la
nn

in
g\

LU
D\

So
ut

h\
20

24

36



37



•
•

an
de

rs
on

pe
rr
y

SC
AL

E:
 1

 IN
C

H
 =

 6
00

 F
EE

T
4
9
5
9
3
P
L
S

RE
N

EW
AL

 D
AT

E:
 0

6/
30

/2
02

6

RE
G

IS
TE

RE
D

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

LA
N

D
 S

U
R
V
EY

O
R

O
R
E
G

O
N

FE
BR

U
AR

Y 
8,

 2
00

0
R
IC

H
A
R
D

 E
. 

S
T
E
IN

P
A

R
T

IT
IO

N
 P

LA
T

 2
0

2
4

- _
__

_

SC
AL

E:
 1

 IN
C

H
 =

 1
00

 F
EE

T

SC
AL

E:
 1

 IN
C

H
 =

 1
00

 F
EE

T

SC
AL

E:
 1

 IN
C

H
 =

 1
00

 F
EE

T

38



•
•

an
de

rs
on

pe
rr
y

4
9
5
9
3
P
L
S

RE
N

EW
AL

 D
AT

E:
 0

6/
30

/2
02

6

RE
G

IS
TE

RE
D

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

LA
N

D
 S

U
R
V
EY

O
R

O
R
E
G

O
N

FE
BR

U
AR

Y 
8,

 2
00

0
R
IC

H
A
R
D

 E
. 

S
T
E
IN

P
A

R
T

IT
IO

N
 P

LA
T

 2
0

2
4

-_
__

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

58



Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-383-24 

PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF FACT 
CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST 

CUP-N-383-24 

REQUEST:  To allow a Home Occupation Permit in a Suburban Residential (SR) Zone for the 
operation of a small commercial trucking business. 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Martin M. Guzman 
PO Box 798 
Boardman, OR 97818 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  Tax Lot 2500 of Assessor’s Map 4N25E20A 

PROPERTY LOCATION: ± 380 feet south of Kunze Lane, within the Boardman 
Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) on Parkside Drive., north 
of the centralized West Glen Subdivision.  

I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The subject site is approximately 1.13 acres and is
located within the Suburban Residential (SR) zone and the City of Boardman UGB. This
Conditional Use Permit application requests a Home Occupation Permit to allow the
applicant to operate and park three ten-wheeler commercial trucks and two truck-tractors
on the property. The applicant has been operating commercial trucks on the site for
some time and submitted the CUP application in response to code enforcement actions.
The applicant is one of more than a dozen commercial truck operators currently utilizing
residential property within the West Glen Residential Area (SR zoning) without the
appropriate land use approvals. The approval of this CUP will serve to rectify
outstanding code violations while providing specific parameters for the operation of the
existing business.

Because the subject property is located within the Boardman UGB, there are direct
concerns with the use being compatible with city zoning designations in the event of
future annexation. Access to the site requires the use of less than a quarter of a mile of
substandard public roads that are not currently maintained or subject to a maintenance
or usage agreement.

MCZO Section 3.050.C.2 Limitations on Uses allows a landowner “to use a truck or
tractor unit as personal transportation to the resident parcel.  No more than one (1) truck
or tractor unit is allowed per parcel.”  Applicant is proposing to have five commercial
trucks to be parked on his property and operated seasonally.

II. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The county has initiated a neighborhood-based
code compliance effort to address growing concerns regarding unregulated commercial
trucking operations and impacts to public roads in West Glen as well as other affected
neighborhoods throughout the county. Staff understand that this effort puts property
owners such as the Guzman’s in a difficult situation, as they have been operating their
business on their residential property for many years for agricultural purposes. Staff is
neither recommending the approval or denial of this CUP.

59



Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-383-24 

III. COMPLIANCE WITH MORROW COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE SECTIONS 3.050,
6.030, 6.050, and 6.075. The requirements for approval are listed below in bold type,
followed by a response in standard type.

SECTION 3.050 SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL ZONE, SR

The SR Zone accommodates small lot development and transition to urban type
densities and uses within an urban growth boundary. In an SR Zone, the following
regulations shall apply:

B. Conditional Uses Permitted. In an SR Zone, the following uses and their
accessory uses are permitted when authorized in accordance with the
requirements set forth in Article 6.

8. Home occupations conducted in a structure accessory to the
dwelling, provided that all other limitations of home occupations are
observed.

Finding: The applicant proposes parking the three ten-wheelers and two truck-tractors 
along the northeast end of the parcel where they will be minimally visible from the 
road and/or adjacent residences.   

SECTION 6.030 GENERAL CONDITIONS. 

In addition to the standards and conditions set forth in a specific zone, this article, 
and other applicable regulations; in permitting a new conditional use or the 
alteration of an existing conditional use, the Commission may impose conditions 
which it finds necessary to avoid a detrimental impact and to otherwise protect 
the best interests of the surrounding area or the County as a whole. These 
conditions may include the following: 

A. Limiting the manner in which the use is conducted including restricting the
time an activity may take place and restraints to minimize such
environmental effects as noise, vibration, air pollution, glare, and odor.

Finding: The proposed use shall be operated in a way that will not intentionally disturb
neighboring residences. The Guzmans’ have operated commercial trucks on the
subject property for several years and the county with few specific concerns
directly related to their existing operation. Nonetheless, the county has received
general complaints related to the operation of commercial trucks in the vicinity of
the subject site. The proposed home occupation has the potential to generate
some noise and traffic. The recommended conditions of approval attempt to
mitigate anticipated and expressed concerns. The applicant did not provide
specific details on operation times or activity taking place onsite. However,
similar operations have indicated that operations start at approximately 6-7 AM
and return approximately between 5:00PM and 6:00PM. Previous Planning
Commission approvals have included a 6:00AM to 6:00PM window for operation,
this has also been included as a Condition of Approval for this application. Any
minor maintenance, such as tire and oil changes, must be conducted during
hours that comply with the noise standards outlined in the Morrow County Code

60



 

Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-383-24 

Enforcement Ordinance. No major mechanical operations on commercial 
vehicles are to be conducted on the property.  

 
Any complaints received of operations outside of these hours may result in a 
review of the activity and potential revocation of the permit. 

 
B. Establishing a special yard or other open space or lot area or dimension. 
 

Finding: This proposed use will use existing lot area. Planning staff do not recommend 
any additional requirements for open space. 
 

C. Limiting the height, size, or location of a building or other structure. 
 

Finding: This application does not include the approval of new buildings or accessory 
structures. Staff do not recommend any additional limitations on the height, size, 
or location of the structures. 
 

D. Designating the size, number, location, and nature of vehicle access 
points. 
1. Where access to a county road is needed, a permit from the Morrow 

County Public Works department is required. Where access to a 
state highway is needed, a permit from ODOT is required. 
 

Finding: The existing access to the site is from Parkside Road. This road is a dedicated 
public roadway not maintained by the county. Applicant is applying with the intent 
to use two access points to the parcel. The use of the secondary access is 
unpermitted at this time and must be discontinued, unless otherwise approved 
and permitted by Morrow County Public Works. Planning staff recommends the 
applicant obtain all necessary public works permits. This is included as a 
condition below. 

 
2. In addition to the other standards and conditions set forth in this 

section, a TIA will be required for all projects generating more than 
400 passenger car equivalent trips per day. A TIA will include: trips 
generated by the project, trip distribution for the project, 
identification of intersections for which the project adds 30 or more 
peak hour passenger car equivalent trips, and level of service 
assessment, impacts of the project, and mitigation of the impacts. If 
the corridor is a State Highway, use ODOT standards. 
 

Finding:  This action will not trigger the need for a Traffic Impact Analysis as it will not 
generate more than 400 passenger car equivalent trips per day. According to the 
Applicant’s narrative, the trucks enter and exit the property once per day during 
the operational season. The ten-wheelers operate approximately six weeks out of 
the year. During the remaining months of the year, these trucks sit dormant on 
the subject parcel. The truck-tractor vehicles run and operate year-round, 
entering and exiting the property once per day. This analysis does not trigger the 
need for a TIA analysis in and of itself. Deviation from the proposed use plan 
may result in a review of the activity and potential revocation of the permit. 

 
 

61



 

Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-383-24 

E. Increasing the amount of street dedication, roadway width, or 
improvements within the street right-of-way. 

 
Finding: No increase in street dedication, roadway width, or improvements in the right-of-

way are proposed by the applicant. The streets that will be impacted by the 
proposal consist of substandard Public Roads that are not owned or maintained 
by the County or another entity. These preliminary Findings of Fact have been 
provided to Morrow County Public Works for their review and comment. 
  
1. It is the responsibility of the landowner to provide appropriate access 

for emergency vehicles at the time of development. 
 
Finding: Preliminary Findings of Fact have been provided to Boardman Fire and Rescue 

for their review and comment. 
 

F. Designating the size, location, screening, drainage, surfacing or other 
improvement of a parking area or loading area. 

 
Finding: The subject parcel is located within the West Glen Residential Area. As identified 

on the site plan, the trucks will be parked on the northwest corner of the parcel to 
minimize impacts to neighboring properties as well as visibility from the roadway. 
No public comments were received identifying concerns with the application, and 
staff does not recommend additional conditions of approval related to the parking 
of the trucks as proposed.   

 
G. Limiting or otherwise designating the number, size, location, height, and 

lighting of signs. 
 

Finding: The Applicant has not requested signage for the Home Occupation. Any future 
signs must meet the sign requirements in the Morrow County Zoning Ordinance. 
 

H. Limiting the location and intensity of outdoor lighting and requiring its 
shielding. 

 
Finding: Lighting is not proposed with the application. Any outdoor lighting other than 

typical residential lighting shall be limited and shielded from the roadway and 
neighboring residences. 
 

I. Requiring diking, screening, landscaping or another facility to protect 
adjacent or nearby property and designating standards for its installation 
and maintenance. 
 

Finding: The proposed use would not require diking, screening or landscaping to protect 
nearby property. Planning staff are not recommending any of these provisions 
due to the proposed use. 

 
J. Designating the size, height, location and materials for a fence. 
 

Finding: Based on the current and proposed uses planning staff would not require any 
additional conditions related to fencing. 

 

62



 

Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-383-24 

 
K. Protecting and preserving existing trees, vegetation, water resources, 

wildlife habitat or other significant natural resources. 
 

Finding: The proposed home occupation will be limited to existing structures and will not 
create any foreseeable natural resource impacts based on the proposed use. 
Planning staff are not recommending additional conditions related to natural 
resources.  

 
L. Other conditions necessary to permit the development of the County in 

conformity with the intent and purpose of this Ordinance and the policies 
of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Finding: A copy of the Preliminary Findings of Fact has been provided to the City of 
Boardman for their review and comment. City may recommend additional 
conditions to apply at the time of any future city zoning due to annexation.  

 
 

SECTION 6.050 STANDARDS GOVERNING CONDITIONAL USES 
 

A conditional use shall comply with the standards of the zone in which it is 
located and with the standards set forth in this subsection. 
 
G. Home Occupations, when permitted as a conditional use and conducted as 

an accessory use, shall be subject to the following limitations:  
1. The home occupation is to be secondary to the main use of the 

property as a residence and shall be conducted within the same 
dwelling or in an accessory building on the same property. 

 
Finding: The primary use of the property is residential. The dwelling is the applicants’ 

home, and they will be conducting the home occupation within the existing 
buildings, with truck parking outside of the existing structures, as shown on the 
applicant’s site plan. This criterion is met. 

  
2. No structural alterations shall be allowed to accommodate the home 

occupation except when otherwise required by law, and then only 
after the plans for such alteration have been reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Commission. Such structural alterations shall not 
detract from the outward appearance of the building as an 
accessory structure to a residence.  

 
Finding: No structural alterations are proposed nor will be needed to accommodate the 

home occupation. This criterion is met. 
 

3. One non-illuminated sign not to exceed 200 square inches and 
bearing only the name and occupation of the resident shall be 
permitted. 

 
Finding: No signs are proposed with this application. Any future signs will need to meet 

the requirements of the Morrow County sign ordinance. This criterion is met.  
 

63



 

Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-383-24 

4. No materials or mechanical equipment shall be used which will be 
detrimental to the residential use of the property or adjoining 
residences because of vibration, noise, dust, smoke, odor, 
interferences with radio or television reception, or other factors.  
 

Finding:  No materials or mechanical equipment which is detrimental to adjoining 
properties is needed for the proposed use. This criterion is met. 

  
5. No materials or commodities shall be delivered to or from the 

property which are of such bulk or quantity as to require delivery by 
a commercial vehicle or a trailer or the parking of customer's 
vehicles in a manner or frequency as to cause disturbance or 
inconvenience to nearby residents or so as to necessitate off-street 
parking.  
 

Finding:  Deliveries are not required for the proposed use. The proposal necessitates 
parking for five commercial vehicles on the subject site. Staff recognizes that the 
use has been ongoing for several years and does not anticipate that this will 
contribute to any disturbance to nearby residents. This criterion is met. 

 
 6. Retail sales shall be limited or accessory to a service.  

 
Finding:  Retail sales are not proposed with the application. This criterion is met. 

 
7. Be operated by a resident or employee of a resident of the property 

on which the business is located. 
  

Finding:  The applicant has made known that the commercial operation will be operated by 
himself and persons which he employs. This criterion is met. 

 
 

8. The permit allowing a home occupation shall be reviewed every 12 
months following the date the permit was issued and may continue 
the permit if the home occupation continues to comply with the 
requirements of this section. 

  
Finding:  This permit will be reviewed annually with other home occupation 
  permits as long as the proposed use continues. 

 
SECTION 6.075. LENGTH OF PERMITS, PERMIT HOLDER, RENEWAL AND 
REVOCATION. 
 
A. Length of Permit and Permit Holder: The County may evaluate how long a 

particular conditional use is expected to remain valid. Some conditional 
uses may be considered "permanent" as a fully developed use that "runs 
with the land" and it attaches to and benefits the land and is not limited to a 
particular landowner. The County may require the owner of the original 
conditional use permit to record the permitted use on the deed record.  
The permit is the responsibility of the current owner of the property, 
whether that is the original applicant or a successor. 

 

64



 

Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-383-24 

A conditional use permit may allow a use that would benefit the permit 
owner on a sporadic or temporary basis until the purpose for the 
conditional use permit no longer exists. Upon termination of the use, the 
land must be in a condition that it may be re-developed in compliance with 
its current zoning designation. The County may authorize a conditional use 
permit until a particular date, for a stated period of time, or until the 
occurrence of a particular event. Additionally, the County may stipulate 
that a Conditional Use Permit will be reviewed or renewable after a stated 
time period. 

 
Finding: The proposed home occupation does not have a designated term length. Staff 

recommend Planning Commission consider approving the permit for a period of 
one year with the ability to renew for an additional year, up to two times. The 
proposed use will be permitted, subject to annual review until the ownership of 
the land changes, or until the City of Boardman annexes the property. At that 
time, the proposed use would cease, and the property shall conform to applicable 
city zoning standards.  

 
B. Reviews and Renewals. If a review or renewal date is included as a 

condition by which a conditional use permit is granted, initial review would 
be ministerial and completed by the Planning Director. The holder of the 
conditional use permit will be required to make application and pay the 
requisite fee for review. The review would evaluate the permit conditions 
and adherence to them, determine if any changes had taken place with the 
uses allowed in the zone, and determine whether any complaints had been 
logged concerning the property or the conditional use. If any concerns 
arise further review will take place at a public hearing with notice. If no 
concerns arise the permit will be renewed. 

 
For conditional use permits without a review or renewal condition, or if 
complaints are received concerning a conditional use permit, the County 
may review any valid conditional use permit for compliance with the 
conditions of the permit. This review would be a ministerial review done by 
the Planning Director. If it is deemed necessary by the Planning Director to 
amend or revoke the permit, a public hearing with notice must be held 
before the Planning Commission. If action is based on a complaint the 
complainant may be required to pay any permit review or renewal 
application fees. 

 
Finding: This home occupation shall be reviewed annually with other home occupations 

therefore no condition is necessary. However, the applicant shall maintain the 
home occupation as presented in the application. If complaints are received and 
it is found that the permit is being performed outside what has been proposed the 
applicant will be responsible for paying any applicable review or renewal 
application fees. This is listed as a condition of approval. 

 
C. Revocation or Vacation. Any conditional use permit may be vacated by the 

current landowner or by the County after appropriate notice and hearing 
when: 
• The use has been terminated and there is no expectation by the land 

owner and the County that the use will continue;  

65



 

Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-383-24 

• The use is not being conducted in compliance with the stated 
conditions of the permit, or  

• The County finds that the use jeopardizes the public health, safety 
and welfare of Morrow County and the use does not conform to the 
Morrow County Code Enforcement Ordinance or other adopted 
ordinances. (MC OR-1-2013) 

 
Finding: The County reserves the right to revoke the permit based on this criterion. 
 

 
III. LEGAL NOTICE PUBLISHED: January 8, 2025 

Heppner Gazette-Times 
 
      January 8, 2025 
      East Oregonian 

      
IV. AGENCIES NOTIFIED: Brandon Hammond and Carla McLane, City of Boardman; Glen 

McIntire, Building Official; Eric Imes, Morrow County Public Works; Bev Bridgewater, 
West Extension Irrigation District, Mike Hughes and Marty Broadbent, Boardman Fire 
District.  

 
V. PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFIED: January 8, 2025 
 
VI. HEARING DATE:   January 28, 2025 
      Bartholomew Building 

Heppner, Oregon 
 
 
VII. PLANNING COMMISSION:  
  
 Option #1: The Planning Commission may deny CUP-N-383-24. 
  
 Option #2: The Planning Commission may approve CUP-N-383-24 subject to the 

following CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 
 

 
1. The applicant shall maintain the home occupation as presented in the application. 

Only two ten-wheeler commercial trucks and three truck-tractors are permitted with 
this home occupation permit. If complaints are received or it is found that the permit 
is being performed outside what has been proposed the applicant will be responsible 
for paying any applicable review or renewal application fees. 
 

2. All commercial activity shall occur within the hours of 6:00 AM – 6:00 PM. All 
commercial activity should be limited to single trips per unit per day. 
 

3. No more than five full-time or part-time persons will be employed on the site at any 
one time. 

 
4. Noise, traffic, lighting, and other potential impacts to neighboring properties shall be 

limited to those generally anticipated for a typical residential use. No major 

66



 

Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-383-24 

mechanical work or operation is permitted in conjunction with the home occupation 
permit. 

 
5. This permit is valid for one year, with annual review and an opportunity to renew the 

permit for up to two additional years. This permit is not valid if the ownership of either 
lot changes, at which time the landowner will need to apply for a new conditional use 
permit. This permit is not valid if the property is annexed into the City of Boardman, 
at which time the proposed use will cease, and the property shall conform to 
applicable city zoning standards and regulations.  
 

6. Any proposed signage will need to meet the requirements of the Morrow County 
Zoning Ordinance and receive Zoning Permit Approval.  

 

7. The applicant shall obtain all necessary public access permits to the property. 
 

 
 
 
MORROW COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      Stacie Ekstrom, Chair               Date 
 
Attachments: 

A. Vicinity Map 
B. Application with Attachments 

 

 

 

 

67



68



CO
RR

EC
TE

D
O

W
N

ER
 1

O
W

N
ER

 2
M

AI
L 

AD
DR

ES
S

CI
TY

ST
AT

E
ZI

PC
O

DE
4N

25
E1

7D
 3

20
0

M
CC

AR
TY

, D
AN

 E
 &

 M
CC

AR
TY

, B
RA

N
DY

 L
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

47
1 

M
CC

AR
TY

 R
AN

CH
 L

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
EC

HO
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

82
6

4N
25

E2
0A

 2
20

0
W

HE
EL

ER
, D

EB
O

RA
H 

L 
&

 A
CH

ES
O

N
, E

LI
JA

H 
J  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

64
3 

SW
 M

T 
HO

O
D 

AV
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
BO

AR
DM

AN
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
25

E1
7D

C 
73

00
HC

 L
AN

D 
LL

C
70

 S
W

 C
EN

TU
RY

 D
R 

ST
E 

10
0-

24
0

BE
N

D
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
70

2
4N

25
E2

0A
 3

50
0

BR
AN

DT
, M

IC
HA

EL
 &

 B
RA

N
DT

, V
IR

G
IN

IA
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

08
8 

KU
N

ZE
 L

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

25
E2

0A
 2

70
0

JIM
EN

EZ
, C

AR
LO

S 
&

 JI
M

EN
EZ

, L
ET

IC
IA

 M
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

56
8 

PA
RK

SI
DE

 D
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

25
E2

0A
 3

30
0

SM
IT

H,
 H

AZ
EL

 J 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

78
57

1 
HI

LL
TO

P 
RD

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

25
E2

0A
 2

60
0

G
U

ZM
AN

, M
AR

TI
N

 M
 &

 G
U

ZM
AN

, E
LV

A 
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

78
59

4 
PA

RK
SI

DE
 D

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
BO

AR
DM

AN
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
25

E2
0A

 2
30

0
KU

RT
Z,

 JA
N

E 
C 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

61
0 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 V
IE

W
 D

R 
   

   
   

   
   

  
BO

AR
DM

AN
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
25

E2
0A

 2
40

0
SA

N
CH

EZ
 R

O
DR

IG
U

EZ
, E

LE
N

O
  E

T 
AL

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

62
6 

PA
RK

SI
DE

 R
D 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

25
E2

0A
 2

00
0

DR
AY

TO
N

, D
O

N
AL

D 
F 

&
 D

RA
YT

O
N

, M
AR

Y 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
PO

 B
O

X 
14

01
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
BO

AR
DM

AN
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
25

E2
0A

 2
10

0
N

U
N

AM
AK

ER
, R

IC
HA

RD
 A

 &
 N

O
RM

A 
J  

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
PO

 B
O

X 
51

5 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
BO

AR
DM

AN
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
25

E2
0A

 3
20

0
SA

N
CH

EZ
, B

EN
IT

O
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

PO
 B

O
X 

67
8 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

25
E2

0A
 2

50
0

G
U

ZM
AN

, M
AR

TI
N

 M
 &

 G
U

ZM
AN

, E
LV

A 
M

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
PO

 B
O

X 
79

8 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
BO

AR
DM

AN
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
25

E2
0A

 3
40

0
ZA

VA
LA

 R
O

DR
IG

U
EZ

, J
O

SE
 E

TA
L 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

PO
 B

O
X 

97
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

BO
AR

DM
AN

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8

CU
P-

N
-3

83
-2

4|
M

ar
tin

 G
uz

m
an

|S
R

25
0f

t.
no

tic
e.

4N
25

E2
0A

 T
L2

50
0

S:
\P

la
nn

in
g\

CU
P\

N
or

th
\2

02
4

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

76



Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-384-24 

PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF FACT 
CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST 

CUP-N-384-24 

REQUEST:  To allow a Home Occupation Permit in a Suburban Residential (SR) Zone for the 
operation of a small commercial trucking business. 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Martin M. Guzman 
PO Box 798 
Boardman, OR 97818 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  Tax Lot 2000 of Assessor’s Map 4N25E20A 

PROPERTY LOCATION: ± 680 feet south of Kunze Lane, within the Boardman 
Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) on Mountain View Drive., 
north of the centralized West Glen Subdivision.  

I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The subject site is approximately 1.11 acres and is
located within the Suburban Residential (SR) zone and the City of Boardman UGB. This
Conditional Use Permit application requests a Home Occupation Permit to allow the
applicant to operate and park two ten-wheeler commercial trucks and three truck-tractors
on the property. The applicant has been operating commercial trucks on the site for
some time and submitted the CUP application in response to code enforcement actions.
The applicant is one of more than a dozen commercial truck operators currently utilizing
residential property within the West Glen Residential Area (SR zoning) without the
appropriate land use approvals. The approval of this CUP will serve to rectify
outstanding code violations while providing specific parameters for the operation of the
existing business.

Because the subject property is located within the Boardman UGB, there are direct
concerns with the use being compatible with city zoning designations in the event of
future annexation. Access to the site requires the use of less than a quarter of a mile of
substandard public roads that are not currently maintained or subject to a maintenance
or usage agreement.

MCZO Section 3.050.C.2 Limitations on Uses allows a landowner “to use a truck or
tractor unit as personal transportation to the resident parcel.  No more than one (1) truck
or tractor unit is allowed per parcel.”  Applicant is proposing to have five commercial
trucks to be parked on his property and operated seasonally.

II. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The county has initiated a neighborhood-based
code compliance effort to address growing concerns regarding unregulated commercial
trucking operations and impacts to public roads in West Glen as well as other affected
neighborhoods throughout the county. Staff understand that this effort puts property

77



Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-384-24 

owners such as the Guzman’s in a difficult situation, as they have been operating their 
business on their residential property for many years for agricultural purposes. Staff is 
neither recommending the approval or denial of this CUP.  

III. COMPLIANCE WITH MORROW COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE SECTIONS 3.050,
6.030, 6.050, and 6.075. The requirements for approval are listed below in bold type,
followed by a response in standard type.

SECTION 3.050 SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL ZONE, SR

The SR Zone accommodates small lot development and transition to urban type
densities and uses within an urban growth boundary. In an SR Zone, the following
regulations shall apply:

B. Conditional Uses Permitted. In an SR Zone, the following uses and their
accessory uses are permitted when authorized in accordance with the
requirements set forth in Article 6.

8. Home occupations conducted in a structure accessory to the
dwelling, provided that all other limitations of home occupations are
observed.

Finding: The applicant proposes parking the two ten-wheelers and three truck-tractors 
along the northwest end of the parcel where they will be minimally visible from 
the road and/or adjacent residences.   

SECTION 6.030 GENERAL CONDITIONS. 

In addition to the standards and conditions set forth in a specific zone, this article, 
and other applicable regulations; in permitting a new conditional use or the 
alteration of an existing conditional use, the Commission may impose conditions 
which it finds necessary to avoid a detrimental impact and to otherwise protect 
the best interests of the surrounding area or the County as a whole. These 
conditions may include the following: 

A. Limiting the manner in which the use is conducted including restricting the
time an activity may take place and restraints to minimize such
environmental effects as noise, vibration, air pollution, glare, and odor.

Finding: The proposed use shall be operated in a way that will not intentionally disturb
neighboring residences. The Guzmans’ have operated commercial trucks on the
subject property for several years and the county with few specific concerns
directly related to their existing operation. Nonetheless, the county has received
general complaints related to the operation of commercial trucks in the vicinity of
the subject site. The proposed home occupation has the potential to generate
some noise and traffic. The recommended conditions of approval attempt to
mitigate anticipated and expressed concerns. The applicant did not provide
specific details on operation times or activity taking place onsite. However,
similar operations have indicated that operations start at approximately 6-7 AM
and return approximately between 5:00PM and 6:00PM. Previous Planning

78



 

Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-384-24 

  Commission approvals have included a 6:00AM to 6:00PM window for operation, 
this has also been included as a Condition of Approval for this application. Any 
minor maintenance, such as tire and oil changes, must be conducted during 
hours that comply with the noise standards outlined in the Morrow County Code 
Enforcement Ordinance. No major mechanical operations on commercial 
vehicles are to be conducted on the property.  

 
Any complaints received of operations outside of these hours may result in a 
review of the activity and potential revocation of the permit. 

 
B. Establishing a special yard or other open space or lot area or dimension. 
 

Finding: This proposed use will use existing lot area. Planning staff do not recommend 
any additional requirements for open space. 
 

C. Limiting the height, size, or location of a building or other structure. 
 

Finding: This application does not include the approval of new buildings or accessory 
structures. Staff do not recommend any additional limitations on the height, size, 
or location of the structures. 
 

D. Designating the size, number, location, and nature of vehicle access 
points. 
1. Where access to a county road is needed, a permit from the Morrow 

County Public Works department is required. Where access to a 
state highway is needed, a permit from ODOT is required. 
 

Finding: The existing access to the site is from Mountain View Drive. This road is a 
dedicated public roadway not maintained by the county. Applicant is applying 
with the intent to use two access points to the parcel. The use of the secondary 
access is unpermitted at this time and must be discontinued, unless otherwise 
approved and permitted by Morrow County Public Works. Planning staff 
recommend the applicant obtain all necessary public works permits. This is 
included as a condition below. 

 
 

2. In addition to the other standards and conditions set forth in this 
section, a TIA will be required for all projects generating more than 
400 passenger car equivalent trips per day. A TIA will include: trips 
generated by the project, trip distribution for the project, 
identification of intersections for which the project adds 30 or more 
peak hour passenger car equivalent trips, and level of service 
assessment, impacts of the project, and mitigation of the impacts. If 
the corridor is a State Highway, use ODOT standards. 
 

Finding:  This action will not trigger the need for a Traffic Impact Analysis as it will not 
generate more than 400 passenger car equivalent trips per day. According to the 
Applicant’s narrative, the trucks enter and exit the property once per day during 
the operational season. The ten-wheelers operate approximately six weeks out of 
the year. During the remaining months of the year, these trucks sit dormant on 
the subject parcel. The truck-tractor vehicles run and operate year-round, 

79



Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-384-24 

entering and exiting the property once per day. This analysis does not trigger the 
need for a TIA analysis in and of itself. Deviation from the proposed use plan 
may result in a review of the activity and potential revocation of the permit. 

E. Increasing the amount of street dedication, roadway width, or
improvements within the street right-of-way.

Finding: No increase in street dedication, roadway width, or improvements in the right-of-
way are proposed by the applicant. The streets that will be impacted by the
proposal consist of substandard Public Roads that are not owned or maintained
by the County or another entity. These preliminary Findings of Fact have been
provided to Morrow County Public Works for their review and comment.

1. It is the responsibility of the landowner to provide appropriate access
for emergency vehicles at the time of development.

Finding: Preliminary Findings of Fact have been provided to Boardman Fire and Rescue 
for their review and comment. 

F. Designating the size, location, screening, drainage, surfacing or other
improvement of a parking area or loading area.

Finding: The subject parcel is located within the West Glen Residential Area. As identified
on the site plan, the trucks will be parked on the northwest corner of the parcel to
minimize impacts to neighboring properties as well as visibility from the roadway.
No public comments were received identifying concerns with the application, and
staff does not recommend additional conditions of approval related to the parking
of the trucks as proposed.

G. Limiting or otherwise designating the number, size, location, height, and
lighting of signs.

Finding: The Applicant has not requested signage for the Home Occupation. Any future
signs must meet the sign requirements in the Morrow County Zoning Ordinance.

H. Limiting the location and intensity of outdoor lighting and requiring its
shielding.

Finding: Lighting is not proposed with the application. Any outdoor lighting other than
typical residential lighting shall be limited and shielded from the roadway and
neighboring residences.

I. Requiring diking, screening, landscaping or another facility to protect
adjacent or nearby property and designating standards for its installation
and maintenance.

Finding: The proposed use would not require diking, screening or landscaping to protect
nearby property. Planning staff are not recommending any of these provisions
due to the proposed use.

80



Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-384-24 

J. Designating the size, height, location and materials for a fence.

Finding: Based on the current and proposed uses planning staff would not require any
additional conditions related to fencing.

K. Protecting and preserving existing trees, vegetation, water resources,
wildlife habitat or other significant natural resources.

Finding: The proposed home occupation will be limited to existing structures and will not
create any foreseeable natural resource impacts based on the proposed use.
Planning staff are not recommending additional conditions related to natural
resources.

L. Other conditions necessary to permit the development of the County in
conformity with the intent and purpose of this Ordinance and the policies
of the Comprehensive Plan.

Finding: A copy of the Preliminary Findings of Fact has been provided to the City of
Boardman for their review and comment. City may recommend additional
conditions to apply at the time of any future city zoning due to annexation.

SECTION 6.050 STANDARDS GOVERNING CONDITIONAL USES 

A conditional use shall comply with the standards of the zone in which it is 
located and with the standards set forth in this subsection. 

G. Home Occupations, when permitted as a conditional use and conducted as
an accessory use, shall be subject to the following limitations:
1. The home occupation is to be secondary to the main use of the

property as a residence and shall be conducted within the same
dwelling or in an accessory building on the same property.

Finding: The primary use of the property is residential. The dwelling is the applicants’ 
home, and they will be conducting the home occupation within the existing 
buildings, with truck parking outside of the existing structures, as shown on the 
applicant’s site plan. This criterion is met. 

2. No structural alterations shall be allowed to accommodate the home
occupation except when otherwise required by law, and then only
after the plans for such alteration have been reviewed and approved
by the Planning Commission. Such structural alterations shall not
detract from the outward appearance of the building as an
accessory structure to a residence.

Finding: No structural alterations are proposed nor will be needed to accommodate the 
home occupation. This criterion is met. 

81



Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-384-24 

3. One non-illuminated sign not to exceed 200 square inches and
bearing only the name and occupation of the resident shall be
permitted.

Finding: No signs are proposed with this application. Any future signs will need to meet 
the requirements of the Morrow County sign ordinance. This criterion is met.  

4. No materials or mechanical equipment shall be used which will be
detrimental to the residential use of the property or adjoining
residences because of vibration, noise, dust, smoke, odor,
interferences with radio or television reception, or other factors.

Finding: No materials or mechanical equipment which is detrimental to adjoining 
properties is needed for the proposed use. This criterion is met. 

5. No materials or commodities shall be delivered to or from the
property which are of such bulk or quantity as to require delivery by
a commercial vehicle or a trailer or the parking of customer's
vehicles in a manner or frequency as to cause disturbance or
inconvenience to nearby residents or so as to necessitate off-street
parking.

Finding: Deliveries are not required for the proposed use. The proposal necessitates 
parking for five commercial vehicles on the subject site. Staff recognizes that the 
use has been ongoing for several years and does not anticipate that this will 
contribute to any disturbance to nearby residents. This criterion is met. 

6. Retail sales shall be limited or accessory to a service.

Finding: Retail sales are not proposed with the application. This criterion is met. 

7. Be operated by a resident or employee of a resident of the property
on which the business is located.

Finding: The applicant has made known that the commercial operation will be operated by 
himself and persons which he employs. This criterion is met. 

8. The permit allowing a home occupation shall be reviewed every 12
months following the date the permit was issued and may continue
the permit if the home occupation continues to comply with the
requirements of this section.

Finding: This permit will be reviewed annually with other home occupation 
permits as long as the proposed use continues. 

SECTION 6.075. LENGTH OF PERMITS, PERMIT HOLDER, RENEWAL AND 
REVOCATION. 

A. Length of Permit and Permit Holder: The County may evaluate how long a
particular conditional use is expected to remain valid. Some conditional

82



Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-384-24 

uses may be considered "permanent" as a fully developed use that "runs 
with the land" and it attaches to and benefits the land and is not limited to a 
particular landowner. The County may require the owner of the original 
conditional use permit to record the permitted use on the deed record.  
The permit is the responsibility of the current owner of the property, 
whether that is the original applicant or a successor. 

A conditional use permit may allow a use that would benefit the permit 
owner on a sporadic or temporary basis until the purpose for the 
conditional use permit no longer exists. Upon termination of the use, the 
land must be in a condition that it may be re-developed in compliance with 
its current zoning designation. The County may authorize a conditional use 
permit until a particular date, for a stated period of time, or until the 
occurrence of a particular event. Additionally, the County may stipulate 
that a Conditional Use Permit will be reviewed or renewable after a stated 
time period. 

Finding: The proposed home occupation does not have a designated term length. Staff 
recommend Planning Commission consider approving the permit for a period of 
one year with the ability to renew for an additional year, up to two times. The 
proposed use will be permitted, subject to annual review until the ownership of 
the land changes, or until the City of Boardman annexes the property. At that 
time, the proposed use would cease, and the property shall conform to applicable 
city zoning standards.  

B. Reviews and Renewals. If a review or renewal date is included as a
condition by which a conditional use permit is granted, initial review would
be ministerial and completed by the Planning Director. The holder of the
conditional use permit will be required to make application and pay the
requisite fee for review. The review would evaluate the permit conditions
and adherence to them, determine if any changes had taken place with the
uses allowed in the zone, and determine whether any complaints had been
logged concerning the property or the conditional use. If any concerns
arise further review will take place at a public hearing with notice. If no
concerns arise the permit will be renewed.

For conditional use permits without a review or renewal condition, or if
complaints are received concerning a conditional use permit, the County
may review any valid conditional use permit for compliance with the
conditions of the permit. This review would be a ministerial review done by
the Planning Director. If it is deemed necessary by the Planning Director to
amend or revoke the permit, a public hearing with notice must be held
before the Planning Commission. If action is based on a complaint the
complainant may be required to pay any permit review or renewal
application fees.

Finding: This home occupation shall be reviewed annually with other home occupations
therefore no condition is necessary. However, the applicant shall maintain the
home occupation as presented in the application. If complaints are received and
it is found that the permit is being performed outside what has been proposed the

83



Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-384-24 

applicant will be responsible for paying any applicable review or renewal 
application fees. This is listed as a condition of approval. 

C. Revocation or Vacation. Any conditional use permit may be vacated by the
current landowner or by the County after appropriate notice and hearing
when:
• The use has been terminated and there is no expectation by the land

owner and the County that the use will continue;
• The use is not being conducted in compliance with the stated

conditions of the permit, or
• The County finds that the use jeopardizes the public health, safety

and welfare of Morrow County and the use does not conform to the
Morrow County Code Enforcement Ordinance or other adopted
ordinances. (MC OR-1-2013)

Finding: The County reserves the right to revoke the permit based on this criterion. 

III. LEGAL NOTICE PUBLISHED: January 8, 2025 
Heppner Gazette-Times 

January 8, 2025 
East Oregonian 

IV. AGENCIES NOTIFIED: Brandon Hammond and Carla McLane, City of Boardman; Glen
McIntire, Building Official; Eric Imes, Morrow County Public Works; Bev Bridgewater,
West Extension Irrigation District, Mike Hughes and Marty Broadbent, Boardman Fire
District.

V. PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFIED: January 8, 2025

VI. HEARING DATE: January 28, 2025 
Bartholomew Building 
Heppner, Oregon 

VII. PLANNING COMMISSION:

Option #1: The Planning Commission may deny CUP-N-384-24. 

Option #2: The Planning Commission may approve CUP-N-384-24 subject to the 
following CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1. The applicant shall maintain the home occupation as presented in the application.
Only three ten-wheeler commercial trucks and two truck-tractors are permitted with
this home occupation permit. If complaints are received or it is found that the permit
is being performed outside what has been proposed the applicant will be responsible
for paying any applicable review or renewal application fees.

84



 

Preliminary Findings of Fact 
Guzman Home Occupation 

CUP-N-384-24 

2. All commercial activity shall occur within the hours of 6:00 AM – 6:00 PM. All 
commercial activity should be limited to single trips per unit per day. 
 

3. No more than five full-time or part-time persons will be employed on the site at any 
one time. 

 
4. Noise, traffic, lighting, and other potential impacts to neighboring properties shall be 

limited to those generally anticipated for a typical residential use. No major 
mechanical work or operation is permitted in conjunction with the home occupation 
permit. 

 
5. This permit is valid for one year, with annual review and an opportunity to renew the 

permit for up to two additional years. This permit is not valid if the ownership of either 
lot changes, at which time the landowner will need to apply for a new conditional use 
permit. This permit is not valid if the property is annexed into the City of Boardman, 
at which time the proposed use will cease, and the property shall conform to 
applicable city zoning standards and regulations.  
 

6. Any proposed signage will need to meet the requirements of the Morrow County 
Zoning Ordinance and receive Zoning Permit Approval.  

 

7. The applicant shall obtain all necessary public access permits to the property. 
 

 
 
MORROW COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      Stacie Ekstrom, Chair               Date 
 
Attachments: 

A. Vicinity Map 
B. Application with Attachments 

 

 

 

 

85



86



CO
RR

EC
TE

D
O

W
N

ER
 1

O
W

N
ER

 2
M

AI
L 

AD
DR

ES
S

CI
TY

ST
AT

E
ZI

PC
O

DE
4N

25
E2

0A
 2

80
0

W
ES

T 
G

LE
N

PA
CH

EC
O

, S
AL

VA
DO

R 
(C

)
PO

 B
O

X 
40

5
BO

AR
DM

AN
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

25
E2

0A
 2

70
0

JIM
EN

EZ
, C

AR
LO

S 
&

 JI
M

EN
EZ

, L
ET

IC
IA

 M
   

 
78

56
8 

PA
RK

SI
DE

 D
R

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
25

E2
0A

 2
60

0
G

U
ZM

AN
, M

AR
TI

N
 M

 &
 G

U
ZM

AN
, E

LV
A 

   
   

  
78

59
4 

PA
RK

SI
DE

 D
R

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
25

E2
0A

 2
10

0
N

U
N

AM
AK

ER
, R

IC
HA

RD
 A

 &
 N

O
RM

A 
J  

   
   

  
PO

 B
O

X 
51

5
BO

AR
DM

AN
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

25
E2

0A
 2

00
0

DR
AY

TO
N

, D
O

N
AL

D 
F 

&
 D

RA
YT

O
N

, M
AR

Y 
   

   
PO

 B
O

X 
14

01
BO

AR
DM

AN
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8
4N

25
E2

0A
 1

90
0

CE
RV

AN
TE

S,
 JU

AN
 M

AR
TI

N
EZ

   
   

   
   

   
 

PO
 B

O
X 

74
2

BO
AR

DM
AN

O
R 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

81
8

4N
25

E2
0A

 1
60

0
HE

RR
ER

A,
 P

ED
RO

 C
HA

VE
Z

78
51

3 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
VI

EW
 D

R
BO

AR
DM

AN
O

R 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
81

8

CU
P-

N
-3

84
-2

4|
M

ar
tin

 G
uz

m
an

|S
R

25
0f

t.
no

tic
e.

4N
25

E2
0A

 T
L2

00
0

S:
\P

la
nn

in
g\

CU
P\

N
or

th
\2

02
4

87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

95



Page | 1 

To: Morrow County Board of Commissioners 
From: Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director 
CC: Planning Commission 
BOC Date: January 22, 2025 
RE: Monthly Planning Update 

Mission Statement 
Morrow County Planning Department provides guidance and support to citizens for short-term and 
long-range planning in land use, to sustain and improve the county’s lands for future generations. 
Our goal is to foster development where people can live, work & play.  

Planning Commission Update  
Board of Commissioners appointed two new Planning Commission members. Stephen Henthorn, 
Irrigon resident, and Andrew CeMore, Boardman resident.  We look forward to working with 
them.  

Planning Commission held a combined November and December meeting on December 3, 2024.  
The meeting was in Irrigon.  Planning Commission approved two Conditional Use Permits to allow 
for the temporary operation of a commercial trucking business and, the commission approved a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a biogas treatment facility and 6 miles of natural gas transmission 
lines located at Threemile Canyon Farms.  

Additional Conditional Use Permit applications are expected.  Two will be reviewed during the 
January commission meeting, temporarily allowing commercial trucking businesses as a Home 
Occupation to allow the landowners to continue their business while looking for an appropriately 
zoned property to park their trucks.  The permits are valid for one year and have an opportunity to 
renew twice for a total of three years.  At the end of that period, the trucks will not be allowed in 
the residential zone and the landowners will be issued a citation if trucks remain.  This temporary 
permit is intended to allow trucking business owners a grace period while they look for properly 
zoned property, recognizing that enforcing immediate compliance would be a hardship.  A single 
commercial truck may be parked in a residential zone without a land use permit as it is considered 
a mode of transportation in the Morrow County Zoning Ordinance.   

Land Use Hearings with Board of Commissioners 

96



Page | 2 
 
 

After five (5) Board of Commissioner meetings, the Board concluded the Second Reading of 
Adopting Ordinance 2025-01 authorizing numerous changes to the Zoning Ordinance.  Staff is 
carefully incorporating final edits on nearly 100 pages.  The final amendments will become 
effective 21 days after the Board decision and will be posted on the website soon. 
  
On January 8, 2025, Board of Commissioners held a hearing on a land use application for the Port 
of Morrow.  An adjacent landowner filed an appeal of a Planning Commission approval of a permit 
to allow application of industrial wastewater on farmland.  The Board supported the Planning 
Commission approval but overturned a condition of approval, modifying a setback between the 
Port-owned farmland and a neighboring dairy farm.   The state Department of Environmental 
Quality (DEQ) had issued their environmental permit contingent upon the land use permit.  
 
Staff Update 
Principal Planner, Daisy Goebel is continuing to work part-time to help with the workload, focusing 
on and supporting larger projects such as applications and the recent code update.   
 
A recruitment process to hire a Principal Planner is underway.  We hope to announce a new 
employee soon.   
  
Energy Projects 
The Wheatridge Wind 
Energy project is under 
construction. The project 
was reviewed and 
approved by the state 
Energy Facility Siting 
Council (EFSC).  Planning 
Department, Public 
Works, and Weed 
Department continue to 
receive comments from 
landowners and others 
about impacts of the construction.   The EFSC has the lead responsibility for compliance with the 
EFSC permit.  More information about the state permitting process and state permit compliance 
with EFSC Site Certificates can be found here https://www.oregon.gov/energy/facilities-
safety/facilities/Documents/Fact-Sheets/EFSC-Public-Guide.pdf 
 
Staff continue to review and meet with existing and proposed new developers on a variety of new 
energy and energy-related applications and amendments to approved projects.  For example, the 
county expects to see the first stand-alone battery storage facility.   Energy projects in Morrow 
County can be found here:  https://www.co.morrow.or.us/planning/page/renewable-energy-1  
 
Morrow County Heritage Trail Update 

97

https://www.oregon.gov/energy/facilities-safety/facilities/Documents/Fact-Sheets/EFSC-Public-Guide.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/energy/facilities-safety/facilities/Documents/Fact-Sheets/EFSC-Public-Guide.pdf
https://www.co.morrow.or.us/planning/page/renewable-energy-1


Page | 3 
 
 

The county attended a meeting with J-U-B Engineering on the afternoon of January 9th to discuss 
progress on the 2024-2025 Heritage Trail update.  The team is currently developing a public survey 
targeted at Boardman and Irrigon residents to determine current trail usage and desired future 
improvements and amenities. The survey is on track to be launched in late January. The team is 
also planning a public open house in conjunction with the survey to promote participation and 
answer questions. The open house is tentatively scheduled for February 12th at the SAGE Center in 
Boardman, pending final confirmation of details.  Printed material including a QR code that directs 
people to the survey and details on the open house will be distributed at various locations around 
Boardman and Irrigon.  A postcard with an open house and the survey will also be mailed soon.  
Anyone interested in being involved in the trail plan update please contact Clint Shoemake, 
Planning Technician at cshoemake@morrowcountyor.gov, Stephen Wrecsics, GIS Analyst at 
swrecsics@morrowcountyor.gov or Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director at 
tmabbott@morrowcountyor.gov or (541) 922-4624.   
 
Interpretive Panel Update 
Several new Interpretive Panels are awaiting approvals prior to being installed.  Staff is working 
with Irrigon and Boardman Parks, the Port of Morrow, the United States Army Corps of 
Engineering, and USFW for authorization to install the other panels.  Staff are beginning the 
restoration and installation of panels and support structures and anticipate this to be completed 
later this year. The final drafts can be viewed at the link below. 
https://www.co.morrow.or.us/planning/page/heritage-trail-panels 
 
GIS Mapping and Drone  
Stephen Wrecsics, GIS 
Analyst, is working on 
developing an ESRI Story 
Map to support the Lower 
Umatilla Basin Groundwater 
Management Area 
(LUBGWMA). The Story Map 
organizes information about 
groundwater quality, testing 
efforts, and management 
strategies in the area.  
 
 

98

mailto:cshoemake@morrowcountyor.gov
mailto:swrecsics@morrowcountyor.gov
mailto:tmabbott@morrowcountyor.gov
https://www.co.morrow.or.us/planning/page/heritage-trail-panels


Page | 4 
 
 

The county interactive map has been migrated to the latest ESRI platform. This transition involved 
transferring existing data, tools, and functionalities to the updated system to improve 

performance. The update included 
reviewing and optimizing map layers, 
updating symbology, and configuring 
features to align with the capabilities of 
the new platform.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Oregon Department of Energy has 

requested permission to use drone images by Planning Department staff for energy projects 
within the county. The 
images will be used for 
training materials and 
handouts related to 
energy project 
assessment and 
documentation. 
 
If you have any 
questions or would like 
to see any of the 
department’s 
technology, stop by the 
Planning Department on 
Tuesday-Friday from 
8am to 5pm or give 
Stephen a call at (541) 

922.4624 to schedule a time.  
 
 
CODE COMPLIANCE  
Kaitlin Kennedy, the Compliance Planner has been actively working on six new code complaints, 
three commercial trucking conditional use permit applications, two Morrow County 
Transportation projects, and the recently approved 2025 Morrow County Transfer Station 
Voucher (see attached pamphlet).   
 
.  
WATER AND PLANNING ACTIVITIES  
Water Advisory Committee   

99



Page | 5 
 
 

At the December 18th meeting, the Board of Commissioners adopted Resolution No. R-2024-31 ins 
support of the recommendations of the Water Advisory Committee (WAC).  Staff met with Board 
of Commissioners in a work session on December 4th to get their input and to discuss the final 
report which includes four initiatives:   
Initiative 1:  Update the comprehensive plan Goals 5 and 6; 
Initiative 2: Develop a Morrow County Drinking Water Program; 
Initiative 3:  Support Regional Water Planning; and 
Initiative 4:  Partner in a Clean Water Consortium 
Implementation of the four recommendations will begin this month, with the Clean Water 
Consortium, led by Board Chair David Sykes, already well underway.  
 
LUBGWMA  
LUBGWMA Committee is scheduled to meet Friday, January 17th 
at the Irrigon Library, the first meeting in months.  LUBGWMA is 
expected to hear a report by state agencies on how they are 
implementing the “Oregon Nitrate Reduction Plan.”   
https://www.oregon.gov/deq/wq/Documents/GWP-
OregonNitrateReductionPlan-2024.pdf 
 
Planning Department has been leading the development of a 
new story map that will include information about the multiple 
aspects of nitrates, from public health implications, sources of 
contamination, land use related matters, geology and more.  
Stephen Wresics has been instrumental in designing the digital 
document.  When complete, the web address will be shared. The 
interagency goal is to have a comprehensive, single source to 
answer most questions about nitrates in the Lower Umatilla 
Basin.  
 
EPA Grant - Morrow Umatilla County Drinking Water 
ROADMAP   
The Steering Committee for the Umatilla Morrow County Drinking Water ROADMAP met on 
December 5th in Irrigon.   GSI and HDR reported on an early round of testing in the two-county 
area.  GSI and Consor are finalizing the Communications Plan and will begin additional outreach 
efforts.   At the December 18, 2024, meeting Board of Commissioners approved Phase II work for 
the project.  The research project was part of a request for Congressionally Directed Spending in 
2022 and is funded with a grant from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).   The Steering 
Committee is scheduled to meet again on February 13th.  One of the items to be considered is 
implementation of the Outreach and Communication Plan, a component of the funding.  Where 
the focus of the Roadmap project is research It has been a challenge to keep citizens involved.  
More emphasis on landowner outreach will be forthcoming.  Planning Director attended an Open 
House of the Oregon Water Resources Department on January 9th and set up a table to share 
information about the Roadmap project.  Three landowners interested in the project signed up to 
have their wells tested for the research project.  Anyone interested in participating in the well 
research please contact Tamra Mabbott.   
 

100

https://www.oregon.gov/deq/wq/Documents/GWP-OregonNitrateReductionPlan-2024.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/deq/wq/Documents/GWP-OregonNitrateReductionPlan-2024.pdf


Page | 6 
 
 

Staff from Umatilla and Morrow County and GSI Water Solutions, Inc. will be presenting at the 
March 7-8 Farm City Ag and Home Expo, an event that is focused on informing rural landowners 
and farmers about the latest science, technology and best practices.   
  
SEP Application 
Staff and GSI Water Solutions Inc. continue to work with the Port of Morrow and Oregon 
Department of Environmental Quality on a Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP).  The 
proposed project would be funded by the Port of Morrow wastewater fine to develop a full 
engineering of water systems for properties south of the City of Boardman.  A meeting with Port, 
DEQ, County staff, and Governor staff is scheduled for January 16th.  
 
 
Additional Public Engagement for West Glen Area 
The Rural Engagement and Vitality Center (REV), a nonprofit organization affiliated with Eastern 
Oregon University (EOU) was selected for provide additional outreach work for the West Glen 
area.  In the Fall, Planning developed a postcard that was mailed to West Glen area residents to 
invite them to ask questions and provide input on future solutions for long term drinking water.  A 
copy of the postcard is attached.   
 
Transportation Planning  
Planning staff is involved with the development of the Interstate 84 - Exit 159 Tower Road 
Interchange Area Management Plan (IAMP) and the Transportation Growth Management (TGM) 
Grant to update the Morrow County Transportation System Plan. The first technical advisory 
committee (TAC) meeting for the Tower Road/I-84 IAMP will be held on January 21, 2025 in 
Boardman. Presently, the planning staff and Kittleson & Associates are working on developing a 
website for the planning project that will include updates, technical memos, and a place for public 
comment.  Planning, Public Works, ODOT and Kittelson have collaborated on three technical 
memos which will be shared during the January 21st TAC meeting. The website should be up and 
available for public viewing within the next thirty to forty-five days.   Planning Staff and ODOT staff 
continue to refine the scope of work for the Morrow County TSP Update which will also include a 
small transportation planning project for the Town of Lexington 
 
Anyone interested in participating in the study or serving on a transportation planning advisory 
committee please contact Tamra Mabbott or Kaitlin Kennedy in the Planning Department. 
 
The Morrow County Transportation System Plan and other transportation planning documents are 
on the Planning Department webpage here:  
https://www.co.morrow.or.us/planning/page/transportation-system-plan-0 
 
 
 

101

https://www.co.morrow.or.us/planning/page/transportation-system-plan-0


Jo
in

 th
e 

Co
nv

er
sa

tio
n 

on
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 N

itr
at

es
.

M
or

ro
w

 C
ou

nt
y 

In
vi

te
s Y

ou
 To

:

W
e’

re
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 k
ee

p 
ou

r c
om

m
un

ity
 in

fo
rm

ed
 a

bo
ut

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 n
itr

at
e 

le
ve

ls 
an

d 
w

ha
t i

t m
ea

ns
 

fo
r y

ou
. W

he
th

er
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

qu
es

tio
ns

 o
r j

us
t w

an
t t

o 
kn

ow
 m

or
e,

 w
e’

d 
lo

ve
 to

 h
ea

r f
ro

m
 y

ou
!

Sc
an

 th
e 

Q
R 

Co
de

 to
 s

ha
re

 y
ou

r t
ho

ug
ht

s, 
qu

es
tio

ns
, a

nd
 id

ea
s.

Ú
na

se
 a

 la
 c

on
ve

rs
ac

ió
n 

so
br

e 
ni

tr
at

os
 d

e 
ag

ua
s u

bt
er

rá
ne

as
.

El
 c

on
da

do
 d

e 
M

or
ro

w
 te

 in
vi

ta
:

Es
ta

m
os

 tr
ab

aj
an

do
 p

ar
a 

m
an

te
ne

r a
 n

ue
st

ra
 c

om
un

id
ad

 in
fo

rm
ad

a 
so

br
e 

lo
s 

ni
ve

le
s 

de
 

ni
tr

at
o 

en
 la

s 
ag

ua
s 

su
bt

er
rá

ne
as

 y
 lo

 q
ue

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
 p

ar
a 

us
te

d.
 S

i ti
en

e 
pr

eg
un

ta
s 

o 
sim

pl
em

en
te

 q
ui

er
e 

sa
be

r m
ás

, ¡
no

s 
en

ca
ta

ría
 s

ab
er

 d
e 

us
te

d!

Es
ca

ne
e 

el
 c

ód
ig

o 
Q

R 
a 

co
nti

nu
ac

ió
n 

pa
ra

 c
om

pa
rti

r s
us

 p
en

sa
m

ie
nt

os
, p

re
gu

nt
as

 e
 id

ea
s.

-L
ea

rn
 M

or
e 

ab
ou

t W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y
-H

el
p 

in
flu

en
ce

 fu
tu

re
 s

ol
uti

on
s.

-O
bt

en
ga

 m
ás

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

so
br

e 
la

 c
al

id
ad

 d
el

 a
gu

a.
-A

yu
de

 a
 in

flu
ir 

en
 s

ol
uc

io
ne

s 
fu

tu
ra

s.

H
ow

 to
 U

se
 th

e 
Q

R 
Co

de
:

1.
O

pe
n 

yo
ur

 p
ho

ne
’s 

ca
m

er
a.

2.
Po

in
t i

t a
t t

he
 Q

R 
co

de
.

3.
Ta

p 
th

e 
lin

k 
th

at
 p

op
s 

up
.

Có
m

o 
uti

liz
ar

 e
l c

ód
ig

o 
Q

R:
1.

A
br

e 
la

 c
ám

ar
a 

de
 tu

 te
lé

fo
no

.
2.

A
pú

nt
al

o 
al

 c
ód

ig
o 

Q
R.

3.
To

ca
 e

l e
nl

ac
e 

qu
e 

ap
ar

ec
e.

102



M
or

ro
w

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

M
or

ro
w

 C
ou

nt
y 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

en
te

r
21

5 
N

E 
M

ai
n 

Av
en

ue
Irr

ig
on

, O
re

go
n 

97
84

4 Fo
r m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
ati

on
, p

le
as

e 
vi

sit
 o

ur
 w

eb
sit

e 
at

:
w

w
w

.c
o.

m
or

ro
w

.o
r.u

s/
pl

an
ni

ng
pa

ra
 m

ás
 in

fo
rm

ac
ió

n,
 p

or
 fa

vo
r v

isi
te

 n
ue

st
ro

 s
iti

o 
w

eb
 e

n:
w

w
w

.c
o.

m
or

ro
w

.o
r.u

s/
pl

an
ni

ng

103



Morrow-Umatilla Counties
Drinking Water Roadmap

Frequently Asked Questions

Through a joint effort between Morrow and Umatilla Counties, the Drinking Water Roadmap Project (“Roadmap Project”)
was launched in 2024 to develop safe and reliable drinking water solutions for domestic well users. The Roadmap Project
is funded through a research grant from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and is being managed by the
Morrow County Planning Director (“Principal Investigator” under the EPA grant) with a consultant team led by GSI Water
Solutions, Inc. to deliver the work.

Who is leading the Drinking Water Roadmap?

The Roadmap Project is being conducted in four stages over 2 ½ years. Stage 1 began in spring 2024 and focused on
developing workplans, initial data gathering, preliminary outreach, and conducting baseline assessments of the study
area. The final stage will culminate in summer 2026 with completion of a “Drinking Water Action Plan” that will present
recommendations for implementing long-term solutions.

What is the project’s schedule?

The Roadmap Project covers the Lower Umatilla Basin Groundwater Management Area (LUBGWMA), which includes
northern portions of Morrow and Umatilla Counties. A map of the study area is shown on
https://www.co.morrow.or.us/planning/page/morrow-and-umatilla-county-drinking-water-roadmap 

What area is the project covering?

The Roadmap project includes the following opportunities for public participation: (1) all Steering Committee meetings
are open to the public with meeting materials posted to the Morrow County website for the project; (2) the consultant
team will be conducting public outreach activities and scheduling specific domestic well owners/residents identified for
well sampling, during which project status is shared; and (3) the consultant team is scoped to conduct four public
engagement meetings at key milestones of the project to update the public and solicit input on work to-date.

Outreach materials will be made available to announce the specific opportunities for public participation. Stage 2 in
particular includes tasks to enhance the Morrow County website to improve accessibility and visibility for the project.
The consultant team will also establish an email distribution list for sending project updates and announcements. 

Because the Steering Committee meetings are intended to be “work sessions” between the consultant team and
committee members, the meetings are scheduled based on their availability and convenience. However, the meetings
are open to the public and provides an opportunity for the public to get a project update and to ask questions. Any
questions or 

What opportunities do the well owners and general public have to engage with this project?

The scope of work and budget for the Roadmap Project will only allow a high-level (conceptual) planning assessment of
costs to implement the drinking water alternatives. The intent is to provide a basis for comparing the relative costs of
the alternatives to the well owners/residents, and to help identify funding needs for implementation. The information
will be used as part of the feasibility assessment, and to let the county commissioners, county staff, and public
understand cost implications associated with options. For example, the Drinking Water Action Plan will identify the need
for a detailed water rate study as any alternative moves forward with implementation.

How are costs considered to well owners and residents for drinking water alternatives?

Pg. 1

Morrow and Umatilla Counties are leading this project to develop 
long-term drinking water options in cooperation with state agencies.

104



Morrow-Umatilla Counties
Drinking Water Roadmap

OR

Scan this QR CodeFill out this form at:
www.surveymonkey.com/r/welltesting

Frequently Asked Questions

Get Your Well Sampled!
If you’re living within this project area and rely on a well for drinking water, you are eligible for
free sampling. If you are interested in learning more about our work or would like to schedule a
time to get your well sampled, connect with us below.

The primary outcome for this research project is to identify long-term drinking water solutions for domestic well users
in specific areas of the LUBGWMA affected by nitrate contamination in groundwater. It should be emphasized that the
Roadmap Project will not include any “final decisions” on which alternative to implement, but it will provide a
feasibility study of drinking water alternatives that includes possible paths forward for decision-makers to consider.
 
Feasibility of drinking water alternatives will consider technical, financial and legal factors, and public input obtained
during public meetings. The project is being delivered in four stages, with each stage having at least one formal public
engagement meeting (in addition to the Steering Committee meetings). Stage 1 includes a public meeting to discuss the
well sampling objectives of the project. Stages 2 and 3 will each include a public meeting to describe the drinking water
options being evaluated during that stage and to solicit public input on those options. Stage 4 will include a public
meeting to discuss potential paths forward for the drinking water options at the studied areas. The specific timing of
the meetings will be determined as each stage begins. 

What are the anticipated outcomes?

To learn more or if you have any questions about the Drinking Water Roadmap, please contact:

Who can I contact to learn more?

This work is separate from the safe water services you are getting from OHA and its state and county public health
department partners, and will not affect your access to well water testing, treatment and/or water delivery to make
sure residents are drinking and cooking with clean water today. 

Is this project the same as the safe water services provided by the Oregon Health Authority
and Public Health Departments?

Morrow and Umatilla Counties are leading this project to develop 
long-term drinking water options in cooperation with state agencies.

Pg. 2

Morow County Public Health
(541) 676-5421

apineyro@co.morrow.or.us

Umatilla County Public Health
(541) 278-6394

Health@umatillacounty.gov

105

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/welltesting


C
on

ta
ct

 yo
ur

 lo
ca

l C
ity

 H
al

l o
r P

la
nn

in
g 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 c
le

an
 u

p 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 yo
u.

 
 

N
ee

d 
w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
so

ur
ce

s?
 M

or
ro

w
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 
W

or
ks

 a
nd

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t w
an

t 
to

 h
el

p!
 

 
If 

yo
u 

liv
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

ci
ty

 li
m

its
 in

 
M

or
ro

w
 C

ou
nt

y,
 yo

u 
co

ul
d 

qu
al

ify
 fo

r 
a 

20
25

 fr
ee

 tr
an

sf
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

vo
uc

he
r. 

Th
is

 is
 g

oo
d 

fo
r o

ne
 4

ft 
x 6

ft 
x 

2f
t h

ig
h 

tra
ile

r/
be

d 
to

 b
e 

du
m

pe
d 

at
 e

ith
er

 th
e 

N
or

th
 M

or
ro

w
 C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sf

er
 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 B

oa
rd

m
an

, O
R 

or
 th

e 
So

ut
h 

M
or

ro
w

 C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sf
er

 S
ta

tio
n 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 L

ex
in

gt
on

, O
R.

 C
al

l 
54

1.
92

2.
46

24
 o

r 5
41

.9
89

.9
50

0  
fo

r 
m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 A
pp

ly
 o

ne
 p

er
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d.
 E

xp
ire

s 
06

/3
0/

20
25

. 
 

Yo
ur

 M
or

ro
w

 C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sf
er

 
St

at
io

ns
 

 
N

or
th

 M
or

ro
w

 C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sf
er

 
St

at
io

n 
69

90
0 

Fr
on

ta
ge

 L
an

e,
 B

oa
rd

m
an

 O
R 

97
81

8 
Ph

on
e:

 5
41

.9
89

.9
50

0  
 

So
ut

h 
M

or
ro

w
 C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sf

er
 

St
at

io
n 

H
w

y 
74

 S
E,

 L
ex

in
gt

on
, O

R 
97

83
9 

Ph
on

e:
 5

41
.9

89
.9

50
0 

  
  

  
  

   
     

 
C

he
ck

 O
ut

  
w

w
w

.c
o.

m
or

ro
w

.o
r.u

s/
pl

an
ni

ng
/

pa
ge

/c
od

e-
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
Fo

r H
el

pf
ul

 M
or

ro
w

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
od

e 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s 
 If 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
 q

ue
st

io
n 

or
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

co
de

 is
su

es
 in

 yo
ur

 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
, d

on
’t 

he
si

ta
te

 to
 

co
nt

ac
t t

he
 M

or
ro

w
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

r g
o 

on
lin

e 
an

d 
fil

l o
ut

 
th

e 
C

od
e 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
fo

rm
. W

e 
w

an
t t

o 
H

EL
P 

fin
d 

a 
so

lu
tio

n!
 

          H
av

e 
a 

ve
hi

cl
e 

th
at

 y
ou

 w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 

to
 d

on
at

e?
  

G
oo

d 
Sh

ep
he

rd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 H
ea

lth
 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
is

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
ur

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 to

 c
ol

le
ct

 c
ar

s,
 tr

uc
ks

, 
bo

at
s,

 o
r r

vs
. t

o 
he

lp
 p

ro
vi

de
 

sc
ho

la
rs

hi
ps

 to
 lo

ca
l s

tu
de

nt
s 

pu
rs

ui
ng

 h
ig

he
r e

du
ca

tio
n 

in
 a

 
m

ed
ic

al
 fi

el
d,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
gr

an
ts

 fo
r l

oc
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

at
 b

en
efi

t 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
 in

 o
ur

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

n 
ea

sy
 a

nd
 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
 w

ay
 to

 fr
ee

 u
p 

so
m

e 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

co
m

es
 w

ith
 Ta

x-
 re

ce
ip

ts
 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
  

 
 

U
PC

O
M

IN
G

  
H

ou
se

ho
ld

 H
az

ar
do

us
 W

as
te

 E
ve

nt
 

 M
ay

 3
1,

20
25

 

 

106

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/planning/page/code-enforcement
http://www.co.morrow.or.us/planning/page/code-enforcement

	Agenda
	December Draft Minutes
	V-N-053-24
	LP-N-529-24, R-N-88-24
	CUP-N-383-24
	CUP-N-384-24
	January Planning Update



